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VISION OF MAHANAGAR TELEPHONE NIGAM LIMITED

“To be a leading integrated player in telecom, diversifying into
related business in order to expand significantly,
keeping customer delight as the aim”.

MISSION OF MAHANAGAR TELEPHONE NIGAM LIMITED

“Committed to remain market leader in providing world-class
telecom & IT related services at an affordable prices and to
achieve international Standards in all aspects”.

IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate
Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by the companies and has issued
circulars stating that the service of Notice/Documents including Annual Report can only
be send by email to its Shareholders/Bondsholders. To support this Green Initiative of the
Government in full measure, members who have not registered their email addresses,
so far, are requested to register their email addresses, in respect of electronic holding
with the Depositories through their concerned Depository Participant.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
To
THE SHAREHOLDERS,
MAHANAGAR TELEPHONE NIGAM LIMITED,
Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors present the 37" Annual Report of your Company together with the Financial
Statements and the Report of the Auditors as well as Comments of Comptroller & Auditor
General of India (CAG) on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on March 31,

2023.
PERFO

RMANCE REVIEW OF MTNL FOR THE FY 2022-23

1. Mobile Network:

i

Launching of 4G Services in Delhi and Mumbai: DoT vide Office memorandum No.30-
04/2019-PSU affairs dated 29th Oct 2019 had informed that Gol in its cabinet meeting
held on 23-10-2019 has approved the proposal of administrative allotment of spectrum
for 4G services to BSNL and MTNL among other things so as to enable these PSUs to
provide broadband and other data services. In a modification to this decision, the Group
of Ministers (GoM) constituted on the matter of “Revival of BSNL and MTNL"” approved
allocation of 4G spectrum to BSNL in Delhi and Mumbeai in place of MTNL in its meeting
held on 21.12.2020. Accordingly, Mobile 4G network is being planned for roll out by
BSNL in Delhi and Mumbai.

Mobile Network elements of BSNL such as OMCR, CNMC, EIR, SSTP, MNP gateway,
SPAM filter have been integrated with MTNL mobile network and are being utilized on
need basis. IOR setup for CIOR implementation is being developed by BSNL for BSNL
and MTNL both. This IOR setup is under testing by BSNL and MTNL team. MTNL DLT
platform is in the process of migration to BSNL.

2. Wireline Network:

i)

iii)

Up-gradation of MPLS Network: MTNL is planning to upgrade entire MPLS network
along with the security solution to handle growing traffic needs of FITH and 4G
networks. MPLS expansion plan includes 6 Core routers, 78 Edge routers and 150 L-3
Switches. MPLS equipment for MTNL is under procurement as a part of BSNL'’s Tender.
The Purchase Order for the same has already been placed. The survey of the sites is
underway for installation of the equipment.

Firewalls for Data Centre: The requirement of firewall for CGO Complex Data Centre
in Delhi, IT unit Data Centre at Minto Road Delhi as well as Prabhadevi Data Centre in
Mumbai was shared with BSNL for inclusion in its BSNL's Tender. Purchase Order for
the same has already been placed by BSNL and the Firewalls are going to be deployed
soon in the network.

Deployment of Border Network Gateway (BNGs) for broadband network: Keeping
in view upgradation of Broadband Network of MTNL, a need is felt to replace old
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Broadband Remote Access Servers (BRASs) with new BNGs having better capabilities.
A ccordingly, the requirement of 4 BNGs was sent to BSNL for procurement through
their tender. BSNL has placed the Purchase Order for 4 BNGs and the equipment shall
be deployed in near future.

iv) Procurement of OTN: The requirement of backbone network of MTNL's transmission
system is being catered by legacy DWDM equipment. MTNL plans to augment the
backbone network by installing OTN equipment. The requirement of OTN equipment

of MTNL (5 for Delhi and 19 for Mumbai) has been included in BSNL’s OTN Tender,
which is in process.

v) FTTH Revenue Share Policy: MTNL had worked out, finalized and made operational
the policy to engage partners on revenue share basis to extend its FTTx services. The
Policy has been significantly liberalized so as to attract more revenue share partners.

vi) FTTH Rollout Plan: A tender dated 22.01.2021 was floated for Procurement of GPON
based FTTH equipment in Delhi & Mumbai wherein there was provision for 494 No’s
of GPON OLT & 21746 No’s of GPON ONT. Instruction has been given to both the units
to issue Purchase Order on M/s Tejas Networks as per the authorization, for the most
essential quantity / immediate requirement only as per direction of CMD. Thus, a total
order for the procurement of 64 OLTs and 6000 ONTs in Delhi and Mumbai has been
placed.

vii) Procurement of Batteries and Power plants: The Power plants and batteries are the most
important infrastructural items to run network. There was immediate requirement for
replacement of 14 battery sets in Delhi and 10 sets in Mumbai. The matter was taken
up with BSNL for procurement of batteries through their tender. Accordingly, BSNL
is in process of placement of orders for urgent requirement of battery sets MTNL.
Requirement of Battery sets and power plants for complete network of MTNL Delhi and
Mumbeai is being assessed.

3. Synergy/Integration of Networks between MTNL & BSNL: In order to reduce the CAPEX
and OPEX, several synergy/Integration items have been identified and shared with BSNL to
bring out the best possible technical solutions as given below--

i) Integration of BSNL Mobile network nodes with MTNL Mobile network: MNP Gateway,
OMC-R, CNMC, EIR, SSTP, SPAM filter of BSNL has been integrated with MTNL mobile
network.

ii) Mobile Service Billing: BSNL has placed a PO for TECH REFRESH of its Wireless billing
a pplication wherein requirement of MTNL Wireless billing would also be catered.
Further, the procurement of servers and other hardware’s for Billing is under process

iii) Sharing of NMS for MLLN: BSNL uses an upgraded NMS with latest servers and
application version for managing MLLN network. MLLN network in BSNL and MTNL
are of same OEM i.e. M/s Infinera (earlier M/s Tellabs). Sharing of NMS will lead to
substantial saving of up-gradation cost. BSNL has placed a PO on M/s pertsol long
back on 05.08.2021 for restoring their NOC DR site and for migration and integration
of MTNL MLLN network with BSNL. However, the activities for migration of MTNL
MLLN network has not started yet.
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iv) Migration of MTNL landline subscribers on BSNL IMS core through diversion of spare
LMGs from BSNL: Since, the NT switch installed in MTNL based on TDM technologies
h ave become outdated and obsolete, it was decided to migrate MTNL landline
subscribers on BSNL IMS core through diversion of spare LMGs from BSNL. MTNL had
already successfully conducted the testing of voice and data with BSNL NGN in Delhi
and Mumbai network. Orders for the diversion of about 6 lakhs LMG equipment has
been issued by BSNL for MTNL Delhi and Mumbai which are in the process of diversion
and installation at various exchange locations of Delhi and Mumbai.

v) Migration of FTTH VoIP subscribers on BSNL network: In view of obsolescence of
C-DOT IMS Core installed in MTNL's network, it was decided to shift the MTNL FTTH
voice subscribers on BSNL’s Network. The migration has been completed in Delhi and
Mumbai.

vi) CRM & CDR based Billing System: Common CDR based Billing system for all fixed line
services (BB, FTTH, Landline and Leased circuit) for BSNL is under implementation
in BSNL. A decision is already there to migrate the billing for all fixed line services
of MTNL on BSNL CDR Platform. Further, CB-CRM system presently being used for
wireless billing/TUC and MNP billing in MTNL will also be migrated to BSNL platform.
BSNL has planned the implementation of the same after the launching of 4G services in
Delhi and Mumbai.

vii) ILD for Voice & Data services: Outgoing ILD traffic of MTNL Delhi and MTNL Mumbai
is being routed through BSNL Taxes.

FINANCIAL RESULTS OF MTNL FOR THE FY 2022-23

The Standalone Financial Results of your company along with Consolidated Financial Results
for Financial Year 2022-23 is placed as an annexure to this Report.

The Standalone and Consolidated Financial highlights of your company for the Financial Year
ended March 31%, 2023 are summarized as follows:

(Rs. In Crores)

Consolidated Result
Standalone Result (MTNL, its Subsidiaries,
JV & Associates)

2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Income from Operations 861.57 1,069.72 935.23 1,149.04
E’;Ete)“d“ures (Excluding Finance 2,030.51 2,160.04 2,110.80 2,239.66
Operating Profit/(Loss) (1,168.93) (1,090.33) (1,175.57) (1,090.62)
Other Income 612.45 627.18 613.09 628.89
Finance Cost 2,354.26 2,139.45 2,354.38 2,139.62
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (2,910.74) (2,602.59) (2,916.85) (2,601.36)
Exceptional Items - -
Share of profit/(loss)in investments 104 115
accounted for using equity methods ) ) )
Tax Provision for the Year - (0.50) 291
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Consolidated Result
Standalone Result (MTNL, its Subsidiaries,
JV & Associates)
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year from
Continuing Operations

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year from
Discontinuing Operations
Profit/ (Loss) for the Year (2,910.74) (2,602.59) (2,915.11) (2,603.12)
Other Comprehensive Income (4.48) (13.98) (0.35) (20.63)
Total Comprehensive Income for
the Year

Appropriation - -
Interim/ Proposed Final Dividend - - - -
Dividend Tax - - - -
Transfer to/ (from): - -
a) Contingency Reserve - - - -
b) Debenture Redemption Reserve - - - -

SOURCES AND APPLICATION OF FUNDS FOR THE FY 2022-23 ARE GIVEN BELOW: -

(2,910.74) (2,602.59) (2,915.11) (2,603.12)

(2,915.22) (2,616.57) (2,915.46) (2,623.76)

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS |  2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Authorised Capital 10,000.00|  10,000.00|  10,000.00|  10,000.00
Iéz‘;ii’l Subscribed & Paid Up 630.00 630.00 630.00 630.00
Other Equity (21,472.90) | (19,286.45)| (21,484.94)| (19,298.26)
E;rrlo%;rg?t and Current 28,17401|  26,60648|  28,17401|  26,606.48
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) - - 6.60 6.99
REPRESENTED BY

K‘;}t’%ﬁzkl?am and Equipment 2,697.87 2,982.74 2,761.67 3,045.19
Capital Work in progress 59.49 73.98 59.49 73.98
Investment Property 61.75 62.09 68.03 68.62
Intangible Asset (Net Block) 1,764.31 2,097.96 1,764.31 2,097.96
Investment 106.13 106.13 3.06 3.07
Other Assets 6,945.09 6,980.73 6,987.43 7,027.92
Other Liabilities 4,303.53 4,353.62 4,318.32 4,371.54

The Company has prepared this Consolidated and Standalone Financial Results in accordance
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.There is no revision of Financial Statements and Boards
Report of the Company during the year under review.
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AMOUNT, IF ANY, WHICH THE BOARD PROPOSE TO CARRY TO ANY RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves in the absence of any profits
during the Financial Year 2022-23.

DIVIDEND

Since there has been no operating profit, the Board of Directors of your company expresses
its inability to recommend any dividend during FY 2022-23. However, the Company has
formulated and adopted Dividend Distribution Policy in terms of Regulation 43A of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015

MA TERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT.

No Material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of
the report. There has been no change in the nature of Business of the Company as on the date
of the report.

CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE OF MTNL

During the Financial Year 2022-23, there was no increase in the Authorized Share Capital of your
Company. The Authorized Share Capital as at March 31, 2023 of your company was Rs. 10,000
Crores comprising of 65 Crores of Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each and 350 Crores of Equity
Shares of Rs 10 each. The Paid-up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2023 of your company
was Rs. 630 Crores comprising of 63 Crores Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, your company has neither issued any shares with differential
voting rights nor has granted any stock option or sweats equity or issued any equity shares or
preference shares or any securities which carry a right or option to convert or issue any Share
warrants.

During the Financial Year 2022-23 your company has issued following Debentures/Bonds: -

1. MTNL hasissued 8.00% 61096 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government
of India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VIIA/2022 (Date of Maturity - 15-11-2032) on 15-11-2022 amounting to Rs 6109.60 Cr.

2. MTNL hasissued 7.87% 27579 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government
of India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VIIB/2022 (Date of Maturity - 01-12-2032) on 01-12-2022 amounting to Rs 2757.9 Cr.

3. MTNL hasissued 7.78% 16176 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government
of India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VIIC/2023 (Date of Maturity - 10-02-2033) on 10-02-2023 amounting to Rs 1617.6 Cr.

4. MTNL has issued 7.80% 3615 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government
of India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VIID/2023 (Date of Maturity - 24-02-2033) on 24-02-2023 amounting to Rs 361.5 Cr.
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5. MTNLhasissued 7.75% 634 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government of
India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VII E/2023 (Date of Maturity - 24-03-2033) on 24-03-2023 amounting to Rs 63.4 Cr.

The NCDs are listed on the wholesale debt market segment of BSE Limited

During the Financial Year 2022-23 your company has redeemed the following NCDs on the
relevant due date as per their respective terms of issue:

Sr.no ISIN Series | No. Bonds | Rate of interest | Allotment date | Maturity date
1. |INE153A08014 I 10050 8.57% 28.03.2013 28.03.2023
CREDIT RATING

CARE Ratings Limited has reaffirmed its ‘CARE AAA (CE); Stable’ rating on the Rs 24923.97
crore Non-Convertible Debentures of Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited (MTNL) vide its
letter dtd 03.11.2022. There has been no change in the rating given by CARE in last three years
i.e, 2020, 2021 and 2022. India Ratings & Research Private Limited had assigned INDAAA
(CE)/Stable on the Rs 10910 crore non-convertible debentures of Mahanagar Telephone Nigam
Limited (MTNL) vide its letter dtd 01.02.2022.
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ASSET MONETIZATION IN MTNL DURING FY 2022-23

MTNL had taken up its asset monetization programme through Department of Investment
and Public Asset Management (DIPAM) in accordance with the Cabinet decision on revival
of MTNL. DIPAM appointed International Property Consultant (IPC) for 5 land parcels and
398 quarters of MTNL and out of these properties, two properties reached to auction stage.
Meanwhile, work of asset monetization had been transferred from DIPAM to Department of
Public Enterprise (DPE) and the Inter Ministerial Group (IMG) decided to annul the auction
process /bids received. A company National Land Monetization Corporation (NLMC) has
been setup by DPE to undertake monetization of assets of CPSEs. Now, MTNL has submitted
3 assets of value more than Rs 100 Cr to DoT/NLMC for monetization. MTNL has also initiated
monetization process for properties of value less than Rs 100 Cr, which shall be monetized by
MTNL through Board of Directors and/or GoM approval and has identified 6 properties of
value less than Rs 10 Cr and 5 properties of value more than Rs 10 Cr and up to Rs 100 Cr range.
Valuation & legal due diligence have been completed. These proposals are in different stages of
approval. Appointment of Transaction Advisor and auctioning agency are also under process
in parallel. In addition to this, efforts are also being made for renting out spare-able office spaces
to various Government Departments/PSU/Banks and other eligible organizations & MTNL has
generated revenue of Rs 434 crs from renting of properties and Rs 54 crs from renting of towers
in the Financial Year 2022-23.

PROCUREMENT DONE BY MTNL DURING FY 2022-23 (Rs. In Crores))

S1. No. | PROCUREMENT DURING FY 2022-23 (Rs. in Crores)
1. Total Procurement during the year 63.6076
2. Annual Procurement from Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) 50.2898
3. Annual procurement from MSEs owned by SC/ST Entrepreneurs 0.3038
4. Annual procurement from MSEs owned by Women Entrepreneurs 1.9800
5. Annual Procurement from GeM 10.18
6. Annual Procurement from MSEs on GeM 10.12

REVIEW OF SUBSIDIARIES ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, prepared in
accordance with the relevant Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, form part of this Annual Report. Pursuant
to the provisions of the said section, a statement containing the salient features of the financial
statements of the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in Form AOC-1 is given
in this Annual Report. At present there is no material subsidiary company of MTNL, within the
meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 / SEBI (LODR), 2015.

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business of the
Subsidiaries.

During the period under review, no Company has become or ceased to be Subsidiary, Associates
or Joint Venture of the Company

The Policy on Material Subsidiary has been approved by the Board and the same may be accessed
on the Company’s Website at the link: http://mtnl.in/policy_materialsubsidy.pdf
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Performance highlights of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies during FY
2022-23 are briefly given as under: -

SUBSIDIARIES

() MAHANAGARTELEPHONE (MAURITIUS)LTD.(MTML) (A WHOLLY OWNED
OVERSEAS SUBSIDIARY

MTML is a 100% owned subsidiary of MTNL in Mauritius. The company is having license
for Mobile Services, International Long Distance (ILD) Services and Internet Services. In
a small Island country having a population of around 12.5 Lacs only and having Mobile
Tele-density of more than 150%, MTML has been able to successfully position itself with
Customer Centric Services. With patronage of more than 4,00,000 customers, MTML is able
to compete well in a saturated telecom market. MTML is offering Mobile Services on latest
state of the art technology having 4G (LTE) Services covering more than 90% of the total
population and 2G/3G Network all over the Island. With increased coverage of high speed
data services on 4G and migrating more and more subscribers to its 4G network, MTML
customers are now generating more than 1700 TB of data every month. Data download
has increased by more than 35% during the financial year 2022-23.MTML became the first
operator in Mauritius to launch e-SIM Service which has helped it in acquiring higher ARPU
customers. MTML has also acquired licence for 5G Services in Mauritius recently. Action
on procurement of equipment has been started and it is expected to launch 5G Services in
commercially important areas in due course. MTML has established its own brand CHILI
in the Republic of Mauritius as trusted total telecom service provider. With more than 265
BTSs operating across the island, the quality of service is to the satisfaction of customers.
Co-location with other telecom providers for mobile network has also started opening a new
source of revenue for the company. MTML has been introducing innovative tariff packages
to match current market dynamics with the state of art technology and is quite popular
especially among youth. MTML has also diversified into retailing of Smartphones and the
business has picked up well during past two years. During 2022-23, total Smartphone Sales
reached nearly MUR 40 Million. All the expenses of the company are paid from its own
internal resources. The CAPEX for procurement of equipment is met from its own internal
resources. MTML is operating from its own building, constructed from internal resources,
situated in Cyber City, Mauritius which is considered to be the heart of IT hub in Mauritius.
There is no debt liability on the Company. The company is managed by CEO/CFO and 10
more officers, all on deputation from the parent company. Other operations are managed
through local outsourcing. During the financial year under report, MTML has incurred a
loss of Rs 3.71 crore as against a profit after tax of Rs 0.26 crore last year.

(II) MILLENNIUM TELECOM LTD. (MTL (A WHOLLY OWNED INDIAN
SUBSIDIARY)

Millennium Telecom Ltd. (MTL): a wholly owned subsidiary of Mahanagar Telephone
Nigam Limited, a Government of India CPSE, registered office in New Delhi. MTL was
incorporated in February 2000. ICT related Services being offered by MTL include Cloud
services, Wi-Fi solution; project one-governance, Managed services, Turnkey ICT solution,
GIS based services, capacity building and skill development etc. MTL earned a net profit
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of Rs. 31.77 lakhs for the period ending 315 March 2023. MTL has also declared a dividend
of Rs 14.38 Lakhs, which amounts to 5% of paid up capital. MTL’s customer list includes
Air India, Uttarkhand Government, ] & K Government, Central University-(Mahendragarh)
Haryana, UP Building and Other Constructions Workers Welfare Board (UP BOCWWB),
Lucknow, Thane Municipal Corporation CIDCO, Film Division of India, Insurance Institute
of India etc. MTL is also expanding its portfolio of service for providing generalized as
well customized solutions to suit government and semi government institutions. MTL has
empanelled Business Development Associates (BDAs) for 10 years through EOL. MTL has
around 21 empanelled Business Development Associates (BDAs) for innovative projects in
ICT related fields. During the financial year under report, MTL has registered a profit after
tax of Rs 31,76,964 /- as against a profit after tax of Rs 19,78,963/- last year

JOINT VENTURE
(i) MTNL STPIIT SERVICES LTD. (MSITSL)

MTNL STPI IT SERVICES LTD (MSITSL) is a 50:50 Joint Venture company of Mahanagar
Telephone Nigam Limited (MTNL) and Software Technology Parks of India (STPI). MSITSL
was incorporated on 31/03/2006 under the Companies Act, 1956, with authorized Capital of
Rs. 50 Crores. In order to implement one of its core objectives, MSITSL has established the
physical infrastructure of Tier III Data Center at Chennai on space taken on lease basis from
STPI. The Data Center has server farm area of around 3500 sq. ft. and the total investment
made in this regard is of Rs.477 lakhs. This Tier III Data Center is maintaining 99.98% uptime
on 24X7. The commercial operation of the Data Center commenced in 2009. At present, the
following are our prime customers who have co-located server/storage/network racks of
their functions and operations in the MSITSL Data Centre:

e The Ministry of External Affairs (MEA) has hosted Passport Seva Project at MSITSL Data
Center through M/s TCS.

e The Directorate General of Employment & Training (DGE&T) in Ministry of Labour&
Employment has hosted National Career Project through STPI at MSITSL Data Centre.

e M)/s Repco Bank Ltd and its associates such as Repco Microfinance Ltd and Repco Home
Finance Ltd have co-located server racks for banking/finance operation.

MEA approached MSITS for hosting PSP 2.0 at MSITS DC Chennai through TCS. In this
regard, MSITS has installed non-computing infrastructure in the vacant area and established
server farm area and handed over to TCS on 31.01.2023 for co-locating PSP 2.0. Thereafter,
TCS has co-located 13 numbers racks and commenced PSP 2.0 in FY 2022-23. The revenue
of the company has been increasing year after year from the date of its commercialization
in 2009. The company has earned Rs. 7,14,49,910/-as revenue from operations for FY 2022-
23 as against Rs. 6,88,29,548/- for FY 2021-22.

(IT) UNITED TELECOMMUNICATIONS LTD. (UTL), NEPAL

UTL is ].V. Company of MTNL which consists of TCL, TCIL, NVPL (Nepal) & MTNL. The
company provides Mobile/ILD/data services in Nepal. At present MTNL is holding 26.68%
of Equity in UTL. The company has not been performing well for the last few years. It has
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huge losses. The Customer base has also reduced. It is not able to pay the statutory dues like
Royalty Fees, BTS site charges, and other dues to the Govt. of Nepal. The company does not
have resources to clear outstanding. They have sought Equity/ Loan participation by its JV
partners but MTNL, TCIL & TCL all the Indian JV partners have decided not to contribute
any amount towards its Share Capital or Loan. All the Indian JV Partners have decided to
exit from the JV and have exercised their Right to exit, on January 30, 2018 at par value.
Notice of exit (Sale of our share in JV Company) was given on 30.01.2018 and was required
to be accepted within 3 months i.e., on or before 30.04.2018 but so far, the same has not been
given effect by the UTL/NVPL. Now, MTNL along with other Indian JV Partners are taking
legal opinion on various options available to them for exit from UTL, which are: Reminder
to implement the exit right already exercised and to hold board meeting for consideration
of all such issues including the going concern status of the company, Sale of shares to NVPL

via exercise of Exit Right, Sale of shares to a third-party buyer(s) and Liquidation etc.
DETAILS OF SYSTEM STATUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23 (AS ON 31¢ MARCH,

2023)

Your Company has the following equipped and used capacity of Landline, GSM, Broadband
etc. as on 31t March, 2023: -

S. No. Parameters MTNL Delhi | MTNL Mumbai | MTNL Total
1 Number of Switches 288 339 627
2 Details of Capacity
2a | Fixed Phones 2013129 2464710 4477839

2b | GSM (Mobile) 1900000 2800000 4700000
2¢ |Broadband Capacity (in Ports) 788736 845020 1633756
3 ggkj B e 1887392 2174502 4061894
3a |Land Line 781605 1264742 2046347
3b | GSM (Mobile) 861619 660482 1522101
3¢ | Broadband Subscribers 215487 227240 442727
3d | FTTH Subscribers 28681 22038 50719
4 |ISDN 6629 8,241 14870
5 |DLC (No.) 30 32 62
6 | Tax Capacity 80000 115200 195200
7 | Tandem Capacity 215500 331240 546740
8 Optical Fibre Cable
8a |OFC in Route Kms 9522.778 10193.238 19716.016
8b | OFC in Fibre Kms 312492.210 327717.035 640209.245
9 | Leased Circuits 8825 12313 21138
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HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The Company attaches the highest priority to the quality of intellectual capital at its disposal
and believes that knowledge and skills of its employees are the key to achievements of its
corporate mission. It has sound recruitment policy and comprehensive training system. During
the past one year, our company has laid greater emphasis on Human Resources Development.
We have been devoting substantial resources on building a skilled workforce that has capability
to counter threats posed by ever changing customer base. The Company has been conducting
various training and development activities which apart from reorienting the employees towards
the greater organizational purpose are also focusing on eliminating any skill gap and technical
obsolescence. The management’s view on training is one of development of employee’s overall
personality and enabling them in becoming a vital productive resource.

TRAINING ACHIEVEMENTS

At present, MTNL has its two in house state of the art training centers, one located in New Delhi
and another at Mumbai. The details of the achievement of training centers at Delhi and Mumbai
are given below:

(I) THE INSTITUTE OF TELECOM, TECHNOLOGY & MANAGEMENT (ITTM),
NEW DELHI

The Institute of Telecom Technology and Management, ITTM, Shadipur, New Delhi is a state
of the art training center of MTNL, Delhi engaged in imparting induction training and short
duration training to its officers and employees in the field of Telecom, IT, Computer System
and Management. ITTM has the necessary infrastructure, technical and academic competence
and excellence for providing training in specialized courses in the field of GSM, Broadband
Technology, Switching, Transmission, External Plant, IT, Computer System, Management
and various wellness and Life Style Management subjects comprising of Motivation, Positive
Thinking, Stress Management and cyber security, RTL In addition to this, ITTM also conducts
Industrial Training and Visits for students from Engineering Colleges and Various Schools of
India.ITTM conducts regular executivesupgradation training for financially upgraded executives
from E2 to E7 cadre (E2-E3, E3-E4, E4-E5, E5-E6, E6-E7) in core competency (Telecom, Civil,
Finance, Electrical, HR/Marketing/CS/Legal) and management module of one week duration
each. From April 2022 to March 2023, total 474 executives have undergone up-gradation training
and awareness programs. Total 81 Graduate engineering students have undergone Industrial
Visit during period April 2022 to March 2023.

Details of ITTM’s achievements during financial year 2022-23 are as follows:

S.No. | Mode of training Name of programs -Number of Number .Of
training programs trainees trained

E-mode Financial up-gradation 06 35
Financial up-gradation 32 321
General awareness programs 9 69

. like RTI/Cyber Security/Yoga

Off-line -
Classes on topics like FTTH / 6 49
OFC /Excel
Industrial Visit 2 81

S P PP 1
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(II) CENTRE FOR EXCELLENCE IN TELECOM TECHNOLOGY & MANAGE-
MENT (CETTM), MUMBAI

The Centre for Excellence in Telecom Technology & Management (CETTM), an ISO 9001:2015
certified institute, is situated at Technology Street, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai.
CETTM'’s achievements during financial year 2022-23 are as follows: CETTM has conducted
various short duration Technical as well as Management related courses for MTNL employees
on need basis to improve MTNL business and services. CETTM successfully conducted in all
21 training programs and trained 181 in-house personnel achieving a figure of 181 Trainee
days. Total 1727 number of students in 79 batches from 32 different Engineering/Polytechnic
Colleges took part in the “Industrial Visit Programme” at CETTM in the year 2022-23.
CETTM is suiting up to conduct classroom mode trainings with foreign ITEC batches from
June-2023 subject to all the Government SOPs and guidelines time to time. CETTM has
generated total revenue of Rs. 24.84 Cr during the F.Y.2022-23 with an increase of 25% as
compared to Rs. 19.82 Cr revenue in F.Y.2021-22. CETTM continues to be the first choice for
conducting training courses, interviews, workshops, seminar etc. by our esteemed clients.
Top clients include LIC, IITM, IITB, Informist, Hare Krishna Movement, etc. CETTM has
leased additional 70 hostel rooms & 3™ floor (6868 Sq.Ft) of academic building to MNLU in
the F.Y.2022-23. Proposals of leasing 50 more hostel rooms to MNLU and leasing of entire 5"
floor (approx 14000 Sq.Ft) to BIS are in pipeline. CETTM started leasing of its infrastructure
on short duration basis for the shooting of web series, films by prominent production houses
and generated substantial business this year. Further avenues of generating revenue through
other production houses are also under process.

(1) IMPLEMENTATION OF MISSION KARMAYOGI IN MTNL

DoT vide letter dated 16.09.2022 had conveyed that in September 2020, Government of
India has launched Mission Karmayogi, a National Programme for Civil Services Capacity
Building (NPCSCB). The programme aims at building a future-ready civil service with the
right attitude, skills and knowledge, aligned to the vision of New India. It also aims to prepare
Civil Servants for the future by making them more creative, constructive, imaginative,
proactive, innovative, progressive, professional, energetic, transparent and technology-
enabled. The Mission envisages a comprehensive reform of the capacity building apparatus
at the individual, institutional and process levels for efficient public service delivery. The
capacity building will be delivered through iGOT Karmayogi Digital Platform. This platform
will act as a launch-pad for the NPCSCB.

Accordingly, the roadmap for implementation of Mission Karmayogiin MTNL was conveyed
to DoT. Under Mission Karmayogi, MTNL Corporate office has issued the FRACing Units
in MTNL. In this regard assistance is being taken from BSNL for completion of FRACing
exercise in MTNL. 10 officers each from MTNL, Delhi/MTNL, Mumbai would be undergoing
training at ALTTC, Ghaziabad under Mission Karmayogi. These 20 nominated officers after
undergoing training under the BSNL Master Trainer will further train the non-executives in
MTNL. A Consultative workshop-iGOT Karmshala organized by Karmayogi Bharat, DoPT
was held on 2nd May, 2023 at Vigyan Bhawan which was attended by officers from MTNL.
All employees of MTNL will undergo training at iGOT platform.
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INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial peace and Industrial harmony is based on healthy Employee Relations and like the
previous year, employee relations remained cordial throughout the year. The grievances/ issues
raised by the Employees/ Unions /Associations were given due attention and regard. The cases/
issues brought up by them were settled through regular meetings and interactions between
Management and Unions/Associations and action, as mutually agreed, was taken to settle them.

EMPLOYEES’ WELFARE

1. Employees Welfare Schemes like subsidized Canteen, Housing, Medical facilities, Group
Insurance etc. continued and maintained by the Company for its employees. Sports and
Cultural activities were also given priority during the year.

2. Married/unmarried female employees with less than two surviving children are entitled to
maternity leave for a period of 180 days on the production of medical certificate from an
authorized medical officer. During the period of such leave, the female employees are paid
leave salary equal to the pay drawn immediately before proceeding on leave.

3. OPD reimbursement has been enhanced and working spouse has been included in OPD.

4. In view of ongoing pandemic situation due to COVID-19, and for providing relief to the
employees and their families, the ceiling for outdoor medical claim in a financial year has
been increased to 10 days salary (Basic +IDA) as on 01.04.2020.

5. Changeover of Contributory Group Health Insurance Scheme for retirees to CGHS- After
pursuance of MTNL with DoT, Ministry of Health issued instructions to CGHS for enrolment
of MTNL retirees (drawing Govt. Pension) in the CGHS. To facilitate the same an incentive
is being provided to the retirees concerned. As on date, approximately “18162" retirees in
MTNL have benefited from this scheme.

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY

In Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited (MTNL), more and more correspondence in Hindi,
office work in files/e-files, computers, compliance of bilingual provisions related to all items
of the official work at Head Office (Corporate Office) as well as Delhi and Mumbai Units and
area GM offices, Telephone Exchanges under those Units was emphasized in compliance with
the Official Language Policy. Thereby, prompt efforts were done towards attaining the national
goal of doing official work in Hindi, the Official Language. Towards this, compliance of the
provisions of Official Language Policy and directions of the Department of Official Language
and Department of Telecommunications, issued from time to time, by holding the quarterly
meetings, inspections, workshops-training, bilingual versions & updation of the main website
as well as websites of the Units etc. more and more use of Official Language by officers and
officials was emphasized.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RESERVATION POLICY FOR SC/ST/OBC/PHYSICAL
CHALLENGED AND ECONOMICALLY WEAKER SECTION

The Company has endeavored to fulfill all the statutory requirements with regard to
implementation of reservation policy for candidates to SC/ ST/ OBC communities as well as
Physically Challenged and Economically Weaker Section candidates.
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IMPLEMENTATION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has constituted an internal Committee to look into the complaints on Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto covering all aspects as contained in the Sexual Harassment of
Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. During FY 2022-23 one
case was received and which was resolved.

WORKING CONDITIONS OF WOMEN EMPLOYEES

We are continuously striving towards gender sensitization amongst our employees. Special care
has been taken in case of woman employees in night shifts. Also to redress the issues of Sexual
Harassment at workplace, special cells have been constituted

MANPOWER STATUS

As on 31st March, 2023, the total strength of employees including SC/ST & OBC Category
working in the company as per details is given below: -

Group Working SC ST OBC*
A 211 51 23 22
B 1001 182 43 193
C 1473 329 27 79
D 880 279 19 47
TSM 2 - - -
Grand Total 3567 841 112 341

*At the time of formation of MTNL in April 1986, all employees of DoT were transferred to MTNL
on as is where is basis. The Group ‘C” and ‘D’ employees were absorbed in MTNL in the year 1998,
whereas Group ‘B’ officers were absorbed in the year 2000. In subsequent years, some of Group ‘A’ officers
were absorbed in MTNL. At the time of recruitment by DoT and absorption in MTNL, maintaining of
separate data for OBC category was not mandatory, therefore, the data for OBC officials/officers was not
maintained. It is further submitted that OBC employees were not identified at the time of absorption. They
were absorbed in MTNL on “as is where is” basis.

TOTAL NO. OF EMPLOYEES (MALE & FEMALE) AS ON 31.03.2023

Male Female
THOETIEY No. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A)
3567 2863 80.26 704 19.74
TOTAL NO. OF DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES AS ON 31.03.2023
Male Female
Ml ) No. (B) % (B/A) No. (O) % (C/A)
3567 21 0.59 3 0.08
TURNOVER RATE FOR PERMANENT EMPLOYEES DURING FY 2022-23
Turnover rate in FY 2022-23
Male Female Total
Permanent Employees 21 4 25
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MECHANISM AVAILABLE TO RECEIVE AND REDRESS GRIEVANCES FOR THE
EMPLOYEES

MTNL has its own Grievance Redressal Procedure for employees. Management of the Company
believes in the philosophy of an Open Door Policy in the matter of redressal of employee
grievances. An aggrieved employee can approach his/her Departmental Head or the concerned
officer of the Personnel Department (including the Head of the Personnel Department) and
discuss his/her grievance. Best efforts are made to enable prompt actions on the issues raised
by the employee. The objective of the Grievance Redressal Procedure is to provide an easily
accessible machinery for settlement of grievances, and to adopt measures as would ensure
expeditious settlement of grievances, leading to increased satisfaction on the job and resulting
in improved productivity and efficiency of the organization.

MECHANISMS TO PREVENT ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES TO THE COMPLAINANT IN
DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT CASES

To prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases,
MTNL has appointed concerned Liaison Officers and constituted Committees

COMPLIANCE OF MTNL WITH RIGHTS OF PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, 2016

MTNL complies with provisions of Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016 to protect
the interests of persons with disabilities. Reservation is provided as per Gol instructions in
direct recruitment for Persons with Benchmark Disabilities. Separate 100 point vacancy based
reservation roster register is maintained for determining/effecting reservation for the Persons
with Benchmark Disabilities. Relaxation in age limit and standards of suitability (as applicable)
is given to persons with disabilities. Liaison Officers for PwD have been appointed to look after
reservation matters and to ensure compliance of instructions of the Act.

MEASURES TAKEN BY MTNL TO ENSURE A SAFE AND HEALTHY WORK PLACE

1. Inorder to ensure a safe and healthy workplace, requisite security measures, installation and
maintenance of fire extinguishers and housekeeping measures have been taken in MTNL.

2. MTNL being an essential service provider of telecom services, MTNL has been scrupulously
following COVID prevention and management guidelines for all its stakeholders like social
distancing, wearing of masks, and frequent hand sanitization.

3. Proper cleaning and frequent sanitization of workplace particularly of frequent touched
surfaces at regular intervals has been ensured.

4. Downloading and updating of Aarogya Setu app has been made mandatory.

5. Quarantine Leave has been provided for employees whose family members have been
infected with COVID.

6. For employees and their family members requiring hospitalization due to COVID, Group
Health insurance coverage upto Rs.6 Lakhs is being provided under Group Health Insurance
Scheme.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company has been suffering losses for the last few years and hence. The provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. However, the company has constituted a CSR
Committee and also formed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and DPE Guidelines on the subject. MTNL is undertaking non funding CSR activities
like sending SMS to the public for spreading awareness on spread of COVID 19, awareness on
Swachh Bharat, Pulse Polio, other moves of the Government, etc. For details regarding the CSR
Committee, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report.
The CSR Policy is available on the website of the company https://mtnl.in/csr_2014.pdf

VIGILANCE

The vigilance wing of MTNL is headed by Chief Vigilance Officer. At present, Smt Shefali
Swaroop, (IFS) CVO DoT is in additional charge of CVO, MTNL. CVO is responsible for
complete vigilance administration in MTNL. During the year 2022-23, emphasis was laid
on preventive vigilance and to enhance the awareness of transparency and accountability in
working by carrying out various types of field inspections. Further, training program / seminars
on vigilance matters/complaints handling and disciplinary proceedings have been conducted
during the year for the employees to make the participants understand the conduct rules of
MTNL, procedure for handling departmental proceedings and improve their working efficiency.
As per CVC instructions, the Vigilance Awareness Week was observed from October 31st, 2022
to November 6th, 2022 with the theme "HETIIR Had HRd - fomRyd HRd” "Corruption free India
for a developed Nation"

As a precursor to Vigilance Awareness Week 2022, Preventive Vigilance cum internal
housekeeping activities was taken up w.r.t Property Management, Management of assets,
Record Management, Technological initiatives, updation of guidelines/circulars and disposal of
complaints. During this week, various activities like administering of integrity pledge, release
of information booklet on the Vigilance & Disciplinary matters, Preventive Vigilance and other
general conduct (Do’s & Dont’s) among the employees of MTNL was distributed. Also various
programmes such as seminars, workshops, essay, poster as well as Quiz competitions were
organized during Vigilance Awareness Week.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has in place a robust Vigil Mechanism for reporting genuine concerns through
the company’s Whistle Blower Policy. The Policy on Whistle Blower may be accessed on the
Company’s Website at the link: http://mtnl.in/whistleBlowerPolicy.pdf . The Company promotes
ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting
illegal or unethical behavior as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.
Under the Whistle Blower Policy, the employees are free to report violations of applicable laws
and regulations and the Code of Conduct to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the
year under report, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals that
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. Kindly refer
Note no 50 of Standalone financial statements pertaining to contingent liabilities, pending
litigations etc.
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DETAILS OF APPLICATION /ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Neither any application was made nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the financial year 2022-23.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE
REASONS THEREOF

As company has not done any one time settlement of loans from the banks or financial institutions
during the year under review, hence no disclosure is required.

INTEGRITY PACT PROGRAME WITH TRANSPARENCY INTERNATIONAL INDIA

MTNL has signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Transparency International
India (TII) for implementing an Integrity Pact Programme (IPP) focused on enhancing
transparency in its business transactions, contracts and procurement process. Under this MoU,
MTNL is committed to implementing the Integrity Pact in all its major procurement and work
contract activities. The Integrity Pact has strengthened the established system and procedures
by creating trust in various stakeholders. Two Independent External Monitors (IEMs) being
persons of eminence nominated by the Central Vigilance Commission (CVC), to monitor the
activities. As on 31.03.2023, Smt. Rashmi Goel, IRAS (Retd) and Shri Bibhuti Bhushana Mishra,
IPS (Retd.) are acting as IEMs of MTNL.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

The provision of Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company as
your Company is a service provider. The total foreign exchange earning was Rs. 4.45 Crore and
the total foreign exchange expenditure was Rs. 1.39 Crore.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Enterprise Risk Management Committee
to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The Committee
is responsible for reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The Audit
Committee also has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks
identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuing basis. The development and implementation of Risk Management Policy
has been covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required in terms of
SEBI(LODR) Regulations, which forms part of this Report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under report, the Board of Directors of your Company met Four times during
the Financial Year 2022-23. The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period
prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 & the Listing Regulations i.e. the maximum interval
between any two Board Meetings did not exceed 120 (One hundred and twenty) days. Details of
Board Meetings and Directors attending the same are given in the Corporate Governance Report



(€0 37" Annual Report 2022-23

forming part of this Report. At these meetings, the Board held intensive discussions on the
budget, important financial transactions and various steps to face the impending competition
from private operators both in Basic Telephone Service, Cellular Mobile Telephone and other
value-added services.

SELECTION AND PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF
DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

MTNL being a Government Company, the appointment and the terms and conditions of
appointment (including remuneration) of the Whole-Time Directors are decided by the
Government of India. However, the Board has constituted a Nomination & Remuneration
Committee. The Government Nominee Directors do not get any remuneration from the
Company. The Independent Directors are being paid sitting fee of Rs. 10,000/~ for attending
each meeting of the Board or Committee thereof. They are reimbursed travel expenses & hotel
expenses on this account, if any in addition to the sitting fees. Details of remuneration paid to
the Whole time Directors and KMP as well as sitting fees paid to Independent Directors for the
year under review are given in the Corporate Governance Report which is attached as annexure
to this report.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), through General Circular dated 5th June, 2015, has
exempted Government Companies from the provisions of Section 178 (2) of the Companies
Act, 2013 which provides about manner of performance evaluation of Board of Directors,
Committee of Board of Directors and Director by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The aforesaid circular of MCA further exempted listed Govt. Companies from provisions of
Section 134 (3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 which requires mentioning the manner of formal
evaluation of its own performance by the Board and that of its Committees and Individual
Director in Board’s Report, if directors are evaluated by the Ministry or Department of the Central
Government which is administratively in charge of the company, or, as the case may be, the State
Government as per its own evaluation methodology. Now, MCA, through Notification dated
05.07.2017, has amended Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to performance
evaluation of directors of the Government Companies that in case of matters of performance
evaluation are specified by the concerned Ministries or Departments of the Central Government
or as the case may be, the State Governments and such requirements are complied with by
the Government companies, such provisions of Schedule IV are exempt for the Government
Companies. Similar exemption has been requested by PSUs wing of CII from SEBI under the
SEBILODR for all PSUs. In this regard, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) has already laid
down a mechanism for performance appraisal of all functional directors. DPE vide its Office
Memorandum No. 9(14)/2009-GM-Part-3-FTs-9036 dtd. 30.05.2022 has intimated MTNL that
assessment of performance of Non-official Directors/Independent directors is to be done on
annual basis from now onwards. Your Company enters into a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) with Government of India each year, demarcating key performance parameters for
the Company. The performance of the Company and Board of Directors are evaluated by the
Department of Public Enterprises vis-a-vis MOU entered into with the Government of India.
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TRANSFER OF FUNDS/SHARES TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND (IEPF)

Your Company has not declared dividend from FY 2009-10 onwards, hence provision of transfer
of unclaimed dividend and shares as per IEPF Rules is not applicable to your Company.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under report, the Company has not entered into any Material Transaction with
any of its related parties. The Company’s major Related Party Transactions are generally with
its subsidiaries and associates. All Related Party Transactions, if any, were in ordinary course
of Business and were negotiated at an Arm’s Length basis and they were intended to further
the company’s interest. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. Web link
for Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and also on dealing with Related Party
Transactions has been provided in the Report on Corporate Governance which forms part of
Annual Report. Details of Related Parties and transaction with your Company are given in
Notes to the financial statement which is a part thereof. Pursuant to Regulation 23(9) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, your company has filed the reports on Related party Transactions with the
Stock exchanges on Half yearly basis.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION
186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

During the Year under report, there was no loan or Guarantee given or investments made by the
MTNL under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF MONEY ACCEPTED FROM DIRECTOR

During the period under review the Company has not accepted money in the form of unsecured
loan from the director or relative of the director of the Company

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirement under the Act, Listing
Regulations and the relevant guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE). Your
company is also complying with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). A Certificate from M/s Mritunjay Shekhar & Associates,
Practising Company Secretaries, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under Schedule V (E) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 for the FY 2022-23 and Annual Secretarial
Compliance Report for the FY 2022-23 pursuant to SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019
dated 8th February, 2019 has also been obtained from M/s Mritunjay Shekhar & Associates,
Practising Company Secretaries are also placed at Annexure to this Report. Further, a separate
section on Corporate Governance is also placed as annexure to this report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the
applicable secretarial standards issued by The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India and
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As provided under Section 92 of the Act and rules framed thereunder the extract of Annual
Return in Form MGT-9 is given as Annexure which forms part of this report. In compliance with
Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act, an extract of Annual Return for the FY 2022-23 is also uploaded on
MTNL Website and can be accessed at www.mtnl.net.in.

IMPLEMENTATION OF CIRCULAR ISSUED BY MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS
ON “GREEN INITIATIVES IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE”

In accordance with the MCA and SEBI Circulars and to ensure compliance of Green Initiative,
your Company has sent various documents including Notice of the 37" AGM, Audited Financial
Statements, Directors' Report, Auditors' Report for the F.Y. 2022-23 etc. to its Shareholders and
Debenture holders only in electronic form, at the e-mail addresses provided / registered by
members and made available to us by the Depositories (NSDL/CDSL). The members are advised
to update by registering changes, if any, in their e-mail address, with the concerned Depository
Participant.

Your Company shall also display full text of Notice of 37" AGM & Annual Report 2022-23 at its
website http://mtnl.in/annual.html. Your Company looks forward towards active participation
of Shareholders in this “Green Initiative” and requests all Shareholders, who have not so far
supplied their e-mail addresses, to give the same at the earliest. There will be no dispatch by
Post of Notice of 37" AGM and Annual Report 2022-23 to Shareholders and Debenture holders
having no email ids in compliance with Circulars of MCA and SEBL

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors to the best
of their knowledge and belief confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss
of the company for that period;

(c) thedirectorshad taken properand sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis and

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating efficiently.

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company had maintained, in all respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal control over financial reporting were operating effectively during
the Financial Year 2022-23, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components on internal control stated in



37" Annual Report 202223 (22D

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Report on the Internal Financial Control
under Section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the FY 2022-23 is attached as annexure to
the Independent Auditors Report which is part of the report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has not invited/ accepted any fixed deposits under Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year and, as
such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date on this
account.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The provisions of Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your
Company as being a Govt. Company.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABLITY REPORT (BRSR)

In accordance with Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’), in May 2021, introduced new sustainability related reporting
requirements to be reported in the specific format of Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Report (‘BRSR’). BRSR is a notable departure from the existing Business Responsibility Report
and a significant step towards giving platform to the companies to report the initiatives taken
by them in areas of Environment, Social and Governance. Further, SEBI has mandated top 1,000
listed companies, based on market capitalization, to transition to BRSR from FY2022-23 onwards.
Accordingly, we are glad to present our inaugural BRSR for FY2022-23 part of Annexure to this
Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s SPMG & Co., Chartered Accountants and M/s SCV & CO., LLP, Chartered Accountants
have been appointed as Joint Statutory Auditors of your Company by the Comptroller and
Auditor General (CAG) of India for the Financial Year 2022-23 and the Board has already ratified
their appointment on 14.11.2022.

COST AUDITORS

M/s R. M. Bansal & Co., Cost Accountants have been appointed as Cost Auditors of your
company for carrying out audit under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the cost
records as maintained under Section 209(1)(d) of Companies Act,1956 and as notified under: (i)
Cost Accounting Records (Telecommunications) Rules,2002 & (ii) Cost Audit Rules,2001 for the
FY 2022-23. The Cost Audit Report alongwith the Annexures for the Financial Year 2021-22 have
been submitted to the Central Government in the Form CRA 4 in XBRL format on MCA Portal
on 18.10.2022.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Your Company has appointed M/s R. P. Sehgal & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries,
to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. The Secretarial
Audit Report of M/s R. P. Sehgal & Associates are given in as annexure to this report.
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AUDITORS QUALIFICATIONS AND MANAGEMENT REPLY THERE TO

The replies to the observation of the Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 are given
as Annexure to the Directors” Report. The Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India (CAG) on the Financial Statements and the replies of the Management thereon are also
given in the Annexure to the Directors” Report.

FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS

The Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditors of the Company have not reported any
fraud during FY 2022-23 as specified under second proviso of Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being
enforce).

CRITERIA FOR DETERMINATING QUALIFICATION, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES AND
INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR

() Qualification: - The Board of Directors of MTNL has formulated the job description for the
posts of CMD and other Functional Directors.The selection of Whole time Directors is done
by Public Enterprise Selection Board (PESB) on the basis of such criteria.

(i) Positive Attribute: - Apart from the duties of Directors as prescribed in the Companies Act
the Directors are expected to demonstrate high standards of ethical behavior, communication
skills and independent judgment. The Directors are also expected to abide by the respective
code of conduct as applicable to them

(iii) Independence: - A Director is considered as independent if he/she meets the criteria laid
down in Section 149(6) of the Act, the Rules framed their under and Regulations 16(1)(b) of
the Listing Regulations.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

MTNL is a Public Sector Undertaking. All appointments including Independent Directors
on the Board are done by the Administrative Ministry, Government of India, Ministry of
Communications, Department of Telecommunications (DoT).

As on 31.03.2023, MTNL has five Independent Directors on the Board of MTNL.
1. Shri Yogesh Kumar Tamrakar

2. Shri Sarv Daman Bharat

3. Shri Vishwas Pathak

4. Ms. Deepika Mahajan

5. Shri Piyush Ranjan Nishad

All the Independent directors have made declaration that criteria of independence as specified
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 has been complied with. Pursuant to Part ©(2)(i) of Schedule V of SEBI(LODR
2015, the Board of directors of your Company also gave its confirmation that the Independent
Director fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI (LODR) Regulations and are independent of the
Management.

Due to non-appointment of one Independent Director till 31.03.2023, MTNL was unable to
comply the provisions relating to Board Composition [Regulation 17].

The matter for appointment of one more Independent Director has already been taken up with
the Government of India.
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DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company has a very balanced and diversified Board of Directors with an optimum mix
of Executive [represented by CMD, Director (HR & EB), Director (Finance) and Director
(Technical)], Non-Executive [represented by Government Nominee Directors] and Independent
Directors.

List of Present Directors of MTNL as on 31.03.2023 & 31.07.2023 is given in the Corporate
Governance Report. During the period under report, the following changes took place in the
Directorship/Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of your Company: -

1. Shri V. Ramesh was appointed as Director (Technical) vide DoT Letter No.E-2-2/2021-PSA
dtd. 22.03.2022 w.e.f. 01.04.2022.

2. Shri Piyush Ranjan Nishad was appointed as Independent Director of the Company vide
DoT Letter No. E-5-3/2018-PSA dtd. 23.03.2022 w.e.f. 21.04.2022.

3. Shri Navneet Gupta, Government Nominee Director has ceased to be Government Nominee
Director w.e.f. 17.05.2022.

4. Shri Premjit Lal was appointed as Government Nominee Director vide DoT letter No. E-5-
3/2021-PSA dtd. 17.05.2022 & 18.05.2022 w.e.f. 17.05.2022 and ceased to be Government
Nominee Director w.e.f. 17.11.2022.

5. Shri Amitabh Ranjan Sinha, Government Nominee Director has ceased to be Government
Nominee Director w.e.f. 30.05.2022.

6. Ms. Yashashri Shukla was appointed as Government Nominee Director vide DoT Letter
No.E-5-3/2021-PSA —Part(1) dtd. 26.05.2022 w.e.f. 30.05.2022 and ceased to be Government
Nominee Director w.e.f. 26.12.2022.

7. Ms. Yojana Das, Director (Finance) ceased to be Director (Finance) w.e.f. 30.11.2022.

Shri Sunil Kumar Verma was appointed as Government Nominee Director vide DoT letter
No.E-5-2/2021-PSA dtd. 17.11.2022 w.e.f. 23.11.2022.

9. Shri Rajiv Kumar was appointed as Director (Finance) vide DoT letter No.E-1-5/2022-PSA
dtd. 30.11.2022 w.e.f. 02.12.2022.

10. Shri Shivendu Gupta was appointed as Government Nominee Director vide DoT letter No.
No. E-5-3/2021-PSA dtd. 26.12.2022 w.e.f. 05.01.2023.

11. Shri Sultan Ahmed, GM (Finance) MTNL CO was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) of the Company w.e.f. 14.02.2023.

12. Shri S.R.Sayal ceases to be Company Secretary & KMP of the Company w.e.f. 28.02.2023 on
account of superannuation.

13. Shri Ratan Mani Sumit was appointed as a Company Secretary & KMP of the Company
w.e.f. 01.03.2023.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of
your Company as on 31.03.2023 are: -

i) Shri Sultan Ahmed, Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
ii) Shri Ratan Mani Sumit, Company Secretary (CS)

Apart from the above, no other Director (including Independent Directors) or KMP were
appointed or had retired or resigned during the Financial Year 2022-23 and till the date of
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approval of Directors Report by the Board of Directors. Details of Board of Directors are given
separately in the Corporate Governance Report.

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS BY ROTATION

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies act, 2013 read with Article
66 F of the Articles of Association of the Company Shri P.K.Purwar, CMD and Shri V.Ramesh,
Director (Technical) retire by rotation at the 37th Annual General Meeting to be held on
29.09.2023 and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. Brief particulars of director
seeking re-appointment together with their Directorships in other Companies and Committee
Memberships have been given in the Annexure to the Notice of 37th Annual General Meeting
in pursuance to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards 2
issued by ICSI.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Company has Five Board Level Committees as on 31.03.2023:-
1. Audit Committees.

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committees.

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

4. Enterprise Risk Management Committee

5. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Details of terms and reference of the Committees, Committees membership changes and
attendance of Directors at meeting of the Committees are provided in the Report on Corporate
Governance, a part of this Annual Report.
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Your Directors take this opportunity to gratefully acknowledge the help, guidance and support
received from Department of Telecom (DoT) and various Ministries of the Government of India.
Your Directors are especially grateful to its Bankers, all stakeholders and investors including
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Directors would like to express their thanks for the sincere hard work and dedicated services
rendered by every employee of the company. The Board is confident that with the employees’
continued enthusiasm, initiatives and dedicated efforts, your company could face the new
challenges and opportunities arising out of the resultant competition from private operators in
the Cellular Mobile, Basic Telephone, Internet services, FITH and other Value Added services.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-
(P. K. PURWAR)
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATE:11-08-2023
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ANNEXURE I TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CS R. P. Sehgal & Associates F-7, Street No. 3,
Company Secretaries Chander Nagar (West)
e-Mail: sehgalrp@yahoo.co.in Post Office Krishna Nagar,
M. No.: 9810076540, 9810126612 New Delhi-110 051

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
MAHANAGAR TELEPHONE NIGAM LIMITED

Mahanagar Doorsanchar Sadan,
5% Floor, 9 CGO Complex
Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110 003

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by MAHANAGAR TELEPHONE NIGAM
LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on the information provided by the company and verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives, during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March 2023
generally compiled with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March 2023 according to the
provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there-under,
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there-under,
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-under,

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there-under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings,

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):-



(€0 37" Annual Report 2022-23

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations.

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employees
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period).

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008.

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client with respect
to issue of securities.

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement)
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and

vi) The other laws, as informed and certified by the Management of the Company which are
specifically applicable to the Company based on their Sectors/Businesses are:

(a) The Telecom Regulatory Authority of India Act 1997 (TRAI) and Rules and Regulations
made there-under.

(b) The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885.
(c) The Indian Wireless Telegraphy Act, 1933
(d) Information Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clause of the following Standards/
Regulations of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect
to Board and General Meetings.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with NSE and BSE
read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

We hereby report that, during the Review Period, the Company has complied with the provisions
of the above Regulations and Circulars/ Guidelines/Rules issued thereunder except in respect of
matters specified below:-
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i)  One Half of the Board was not comprised of Independent Directors from 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023.

ii) The Board requires 6 (Six) Independent Directors from 01-04-2022 to 31-03-2023 but it had only 5
(Five) independent directors on the Board during the period.

iii) The Company has not complied with the Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015.

We further report that

As informed by the Company and as per inspection of records, MTNL has a very balanced
and diversified Board of Directors with an optimum mix of Executive [represented by CMD,
Director (HR & EB), Director (Technical) and Director (Finance) and Non-Executive [represented
by Government Nominee Directors and Independent Directors].

The Composition of the Board of Directors of MTNL as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Catecorv of Directors Board Actual Strength as

i Structure on March 31,2023
Chairman & Managing Director 1 1
Whole-time Executive (Functional) Directors 3 3

Part-time Official Directors (Government Nominees)
representing the Department of Telecommunication 2 2
(DoT), Government of India

Part-time Non-official (Independent) Directors 6 5
Total 12 11

MTNL is a Public Sector Undertaking. All appointments including Independent Directors
on the Board are made by the Administrative Ministry, Government of India, i.e. Ministry
of Communications & Information Technology. As on 31.03.2023, MTNL had four Executive
Directors, two Govt. Nominee Directors and five Independent Director (including one women
independent director) on its Board. In order to comply with provisions of Regulation 17(1) of
SEBI (LODR) 2015, MTNL need six independent directors i.e. fifty percent of the total strength
as MTNL had six directors (including four functional and two Government Nominee directors)
including Executive Chairman. In the circumstances, MTNL needs one more Independent
Director on its Board. Due to non-appointment of one independent director till 31.03.2023, the
Composition of the Board was not in conformity with Regulations 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation,
2015 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance. The Company has also informed that the
matter for appointment of one more Independent Director has already been taken up with the
Government of India.

As informed by the Company and as per inspection of records, the Company is maintaining
data in the Excel Sheet which is required under Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and not using any
software to preserve data with adequate control and checks. Also it is informed by the Company
is in process of arranging the Hardware and Software requirement for installation of Structure
Digital Database Software and is presently maintaining data in the excel sheet.
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Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings in advance, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance of the Meetings. The system exists in the
Company for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the Meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

All decisions of the Board and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded
in the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee(s) of the Board as the
case may be. No dissenting views of any Director were recorded in the minutes maintained by
the Company.

We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there has not been any such activity having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, etc. except the following:-

We further report that during the audit period, MTNL has issued following Debentures/Bonds: -

1. MTNL hasissued 8.00% 61096 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government
of India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VIIA/2022 (Date of Maturity - 15-11-2032) on 15-11-2022 amounting to Rs 6109.60 Cr.

2. MTNL hasissued 7.87% 27579 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government
of India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bondsin the Nature of Debentures
Series VIIB/2022 (Date of Maturity - 01-12-2032) on 01-12-2022 amounting to Rs 2757.9 Cr.

3. MTNL hasissued 7.78% 16176 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government
of India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VIIC/2023 (Date of Maturity - 10-02-2033) on 10-02-2023 amounting to Rs 1617.6 Cr.

4. MTNL hasissued 7.80% 3615 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government
of India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VIID/2023 (Date of Maturity - 24-02-2033) on 24-02-2023 amounting to Rs 361.5 Cr.

5. MTNL hasissued 7.75% 634 (face value Rs. 1000000/-) Unsecured Rated Listed Government of
India Guaranteed Redeemable Non-Convertible Taxable Bonds in the Nature of Debentures
Series VII E/2023 (Date of Maturity - 24-03-2033) on 24-03-2023 amounting to Rs 63.4 Cr.

Total amount of Bonds issued during the Financial Year 2022-23 is Rs. 10910 Crore.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an
integral part of this report.
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To,

ANNEXURE - A’

The Members,
MAHANAGAR TELEPHONE NIGAM LIMITED

Mahanagar Doorsanchar Sadan,
5% Floor, 9 CGO Complex
Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110 003

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial Records are the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification
was done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.
We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
the account of the Company.

Wherever required, have obtained Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test-check basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company

R.P. SEHGAL & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

(R.P. SEHGAL)
Membership No. FCS-1468
CP No. 14936
UDIN-F001468E000316134

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16.05.2023
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ANNEXURE II1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
MRITUNJAY SHEKHAR & ASSOCIATES 311B, Vikas Surya Galaxy,
COMPANY SECRETARIES Plot No. 09, Sector-4,
E-mail — shekharmritunjay3@gmail.com Dwarka, New Delhi 110078
M. No.: 9540043975/8076567045 Website: https://www.msaonline.info/

FRN-S2018DE619000 P R -2919/2023

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR FY 2022-23

The Members of
Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited

New Delhi.

1. We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Mahanagar
Telephone Nigam Limited (‘Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2023, as stipulated
under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46
and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”)
and also DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, 2010 as amended from time
to time.

2. The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate
governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of
the company.

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, we certify that the company has generally complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the listing regulations except that:

i)  One Half of the Board was not comprised of Independent Directors from 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023.

ii) The Board requires 6 (Six) Independent Directors from 01-04-2022 to 31-03-2023 but it had only
5 (Five) independent directors on the Board during the period.

We further state that the compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management conducted the affairs
of the Company.

For MRITUNJAY SHEKHAR & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Sd/-
MRITUNJAY CHANDRA SHEKHAR
ACS/ FCS No.: 17250

C P No.: 20871
Date: 05/05/2023 UDIN number A017250E000258799
Place: NEW DELHI Peer Review No: 2919/2023
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ANNEXURE II1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MRITUNJAY SHEKHAR & ASSOCIATES 311B, Vikas Surya Galaxy,
COMPANY SECRETARIES Plot No. 09, Sector-4,
Email — shekharmritunjay3@gmail.com Dwarka, New Delhi 110078
M. No.: 9540043975/8076567045 Website: https://www.msaonline.info/

FRN-52018DE619000 P R -2919/2023
ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
OF
M/S. MAHANAGAR TELEPHONE NIGAM LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Pursuant to Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 issued by the Securities
Exchange Board of India)

We, Mritunjay Shekhar & Associates, Company Secretaries have examined:

e All the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by M/s
Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited.

e the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
e the website of the listed entity,
¢ any other document/ filing, as may be relevant,

Which has been relied upon to make this certification, for the year ended 31st March 2023
(“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of :-

e the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

e the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI”); The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines
issued thereunder, have been examined, include: -

(a) Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Take over
Regulations) Regulations, 2011;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; and based on the above examination,

We hereby report that, during the Review Period:
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ADDITIONAL AFFIRMATIONS:-

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Compliance
status
(Yes/No/NA)

Observations
/Remarks by
PCS*

Secretarial Standards:
The compliances of the listed entity are in
accordance with the applicable Secretarial
Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries India (ICSI), as notified
by the Central Government under section
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
mandatorily applicable.

YES

Adoption and timely updation of the Policies:
e All applicable policies under SEBI
Regulations are adopted with the approval of
board of directors of the listed entities

¢ All the policies are in conformity with SEBI
Regulations and has been reviewed & timely
updated as per the regulations/circulars/
guidelines issued by SEBI

e YES
e YES

All the policies are in
conformity ~ with  SEBI
Regulations whereas the
company is in the process
of updating its Related
Party Transaction Policy

Maintenance and disclosures on Website:

¢ The Listed entity is maintaining a functional
website

¢ Timely dissemination of the documents/
information under a separate section on the
website

¢ Web-links provided in annual corporate
governance reports under Regulation 27(2) are
accurate and specific which re-directs to the
relevant document(s)/ section of the website

YES

Disqualification of Director:

None of the Director of the Company are
disqualified under Section 164 of Companies
Act, 2013

YES

To examine details related to Subsidiaries of
listed entities:

(a) Identification of material
companies

(b) Requirements with respect to disclosure of
material as well as other subsidiaries

subsidiary

a. NOT
APPLICABLE
b. YES

Preservation of Documents:

The listed entity is preserving and
maintaining records as prescribed under
SEBI Regulations and disposal of records as
per Policy of Preservation of Documents and
Archival policy prescribed under SEBI LODR
Regulations, 2015

YES

.........................................
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Performance Evaluation: MCA through General
The listed entity has conducted performance circular dated 05/06/2015
evaluation of the Board, Independent NA has  exempted  Govt.
Directors and the Committees at the start Companies  from  the
of every financial year as prescribed in SEBI Provisions of 178(2) of the

Regulations Companies Act 2013

Related Party Transactions:

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior
approval of Audit Committee for all Related
party transactions

(b) In case no prior approval obtained, the listed NA
entity shall provide detailed reasons along
with confirmation whether the transactions
were subsequently approved/ratified/rejected
by the Audit committee

Disclosure of events or information:

The listed entity has provided all the required
disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 alongwith YES
Schedule IIT of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015
within the time limits prescribed thereunder.

10.

Prohibition of Insider Trading; The Company is in process of
The listed entity is in compliance with NO arranging the Hardware and
Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Software requirement for
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 installation of SDD Software.

11.

Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if Detailed in Annexure to
any: the report.

No Actions taken against the listed entity/ its
promoters/directors/ subsidiaries either by
SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under NO
the Standard Operating Procedures issued by
SEBI through various circulars) under SEBI
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued
thereunder

12.

Additional Non-compliances, if any:
No any additional non-compliance observed for N/A
all SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note etc.

*Observations/Remarks by PCS are mandatory if the Compliance status is provided as ‘No’ or

1NAI

For MRITUNJAY SHEKHAR & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

MRITUNJAY CHANDRA SHEKHAR

ACS/ FCS No.: 17250

CP No.: 20871

UDIN: A017250E000257820

Peer Review No. 2919/2023

Date: 05-05-2023
Place: NEW DELHI
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ANNEXURES TO ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF M/s.
MAHANAGAR TELEPHONE NIGAM LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31** MARCH 2023

ANNEXURE I

Clarifications submitted by MTNL vide its letter no. MTNL/SECTT/SE/2022 Dated 24/05/2022 to
NSE letter no. NSE/LIST-SOP/COMB/FINES/0823 dtd. 20/05/2022 and BSE email dtd. 20/05/2022
is as follows: -

Kindly refer our earlier letters wherein it has been stated that MTNL is a Public Sector
Undertaking. All appointments including Independent Directors on the Board are made by the
Administrative Ministry, Government of India, i.e. Ministry of Communications & Information
Technology. The Board of Directors of MTNL in its 348" Board Meeting held on 12.11.2021
has appointed the following Independent Directors for a period of three years, or until further
orders whichever is earlier pursuant to the Department of Telecommunication Letter No. No.E-
5-3/2018-PSA dtd. 01.11.2021:-

(i) Sh. Sarv Daman Bharat

(i) Ms. Deepika Mahajan

(iif) Sh. Yogesh Kumar Tamrakar and
(iv) Sh. Vishwas Pathak.

For the Quarter ended 31.03.2022, MTNL had four Executive Directors, two Govt. Nominee
Directors and four Independent Director (including women directors) on its Board.In order
to comply with provisions of Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) 2015, we need six independent
directors i.e. fifty percent of the total strength as we have six executive directors (including
four functional and two Government Nominee directors) including Executive Chairman. Hence
MTNL needs two more independent directors on its Board as on 31.03.2022 for which we have
already sent letter to the Government of India. Further, we wish to hereby inform you that Shri
Piyush Ranjan Nishad has been appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of MTNL for
a period of three years, or until further orders whichever is earlier pursuant to the Department
of Telecommunications, Ministry of Communications, Govt. of India vide its Letter No.E-5-
3/2018-PSA dtd. 23.03.2022 w.e.f. 21.04.2022.Due to non-appointment of two more Independent
Directors, we were unable to comply with provisions relating to Board Composition (Regulation
17) i.e. Half of the Board is not Non — Executive as on 31.03.2022.

ANNEXURE - 11

Clarification submitted by MTNL vide its letter no. MTNL/SECTT/SE/2022 Dated 23/08/2022 to
NSE Email/ letter no. NSE/LIST-SOP/COMB/FINES/0664 dtd. 22/08/2022 and BSE email dtd.
22/08/2022 is as follows: -

Kindly refer our earlier letters wherein it has been stated that MTNL is a Public Sector
Undertaking. All appointments including Independent Directors on the Board are made by the
Administrative Ministry, Government of India, i.e. Ministry of Communications & Information
Technology. For the Quarter ended 30.06.2022, MTNL had four Executive Directors, two Govt.
Nominee Directors and Five Independent Director (including women directors) on its Board.
In order to comply with provisions of Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) 2015, we need six
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independent directors i.e. fifty percent of the total strength as we have six executive directors
(including four functional and two Government Nominee directors) including Executive
Chairman. Hence MTNL needs one more independent director on its Board as on 30.06.2022
for which we have already sent letter to the Government of India. Due to non-appointment of
one more Independent Directors, we were unable to comply with provisions relating to Board
Composition (Regulation 17) i.e. Half of the Board is not Non — Executive as on 30.06.2022.

ANNEXURE IIT

Clarifications submitted by MTNL vide its letter no. MTNL/SECTT/SE/2022 dated 19/09/2022 to
NSE letter no. NSE/LIST-SOP/COMB/FINES/0740 dtd. 14/09/2022 is as follows: -

In this regard, MTNL state as under:-Vide our letter/email dtd. 22.08.2022, MTNL has already
clarified its position on compliance with regulation 29(2)(3) of SEBI (LODR) 2015. Further, The
Union Cabinet in its meeting held on 27" July 2022 had considered and approved the debt
restructuring plan of MTNL for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24. The approval was conveyed to
MTNL by Department of Telecommunications (DoT) vide para 2.6 of its OM No. 20-28/2022-PR
dated 02" August 2022, to raise Sovereign Guarantee Bonds, with tenure of 10 years or more,
for an amount of Rs. 17,571/- Crores (Rs. 10,910/- Crores for FY 2022-23 and Rs 6,661/- Crores for
FY 2023-24), with waiver of guarantee fee to repay high cost debt and restructure it with new
substantial loan. The above decision of Union Cabinet was available in all the print/social media
under heading “Cabinet approves Rs 1.64-trn package for revival of BSNL”. Therefore, the
information of fund raising was already available in public domain. It may be mentioned that
MTNL is a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) and Government of India is holding 56.25%
of shares of MTNL. It has to comply with the directions issued by the Union Cabinet and its
Administrative Ministry i.e. Department of Telecommunications with the concurrence/approval
of the Board. Therefore, decision to raise Sovereign Guarantee Bonds by MTNL which was
already taken by the Union Cabinet in its meeting held on 27.07.2022 was put up to the Board
of Directors of MTNL in its meeting held on 12.08.2022, and the Board took note of the same.
MTNL had already intimated NSE on 25.07.2022 that MTNL’s Board meeting to approve the
Unaudited Reviewed Financial Results for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2022 will be held on
12.08.2022.The above mentioned Cabinet Approval was also pleased before the Board Meeting.
Thus, MTNL has not violated the provision of Regulation 29(2)(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

ANNEXURE -1V

Clarifications submitted by MTNL vide its letter no. MTNL/SECTT/SE/2022 dated 24/11/2022
to NSE Letter No. NSE/LIST-SOP/COMB/FINES/0946 dtd. 21/11/2022 and BSE email dtd.
21/11/2022 is as follows: -

Kindly refer our earlier letters wherein it has been stated that MTNL is a Public Sector
Undertaking. All appointments including Independent Directors on the Board are made by the
Administrative Ministry, Government of India, i.e. Ministry of Communications & Information
Technology. For the Quarter ended 30.09.2022, MTNL had four Executive Directors, two Govt.
Nominee Directors and five Independent Director (including women directors) on its Board.
In order to comply with provisions of Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) 2015, we need six
independent directors i.e. fifty percent of the total strength as we have six executive directors
(including four functional and two Government Nominee directors) including Executive
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Chairman. Hence MTNL needs one more independent director on its Board as on 30.09.2022
for which we have already sent letter to the Government of India. Due to non-appointment of
one more Independent Directors, we were unable to comply with provisions relating to Board
Composition (Regulation 17) i.e. Half of the Board is not Non — Executive as on 30.09.2022.

ANNEXURE -V

Clarifications submitted by MTNL vide its letter no. MTNL/SECTT/SE/2022 dated 27/02/2023
to NSE Email/ letter no. NSE/LIST-SOP/COMB/FINES/0190 dtd. 21/02/2023 and BSE Email dtd.
21/02/2023 is as follows: -

MTNL is a Public Sector Undertaking. All appointments including Independent Directors
on the Board are made by the Administrative Ministry, Government of India, i.e. Ministry of
Communications & Information Technology. As on 26.12.2022 (quarter end) MTNL had four
Executive Directors, two Govt. Nominee Directors and five Independent Director (including
one woman independent director) on its Board. As on 31.12.2022 (quarter end) MTNL had four
Executive Directors, one Govt. Nominee Directors and five Independent Director (including one
woman independent director) on its Board. In order to comply with provisions of Regulation
17(1) of SEBI (LODR) 2015, we need six independent directors as we have Six Directors other
than Independent Directors (Four functional and Two Government Nominee directors including
Executive Chairman) till 26.12.2022. In the circumstances, MTNL needs one more Independent
Director on its Board. On 26.12.2022, the Govt. had withdrawn the nomination of one director
and nominated another in her place who joined as Govt Nominee Director w.e.f 05.01.2023 (Date
of obtaining DIN). The total no of directors excluding Independent directors from 27.12.2022
to 31.12.2022 was five and the total no of independent directors during this aforesaid period
was also five hence, we were Technically compliant (as we have equal (5) independent Director
on 31.12.2022.The matter for appointment of one more Independent Director has already been
taken up with the Government of India. Due to non-appointment of one Independent Director
till 26.12.2022, we were unable to comply with provisions relating to Board Composition
(Regulation 17) i.e. Half of the Board is not Non — Executive. Even after 26.12.2022 we are non-
compliant (technically) because as per our compliant we still require one more Independent
Director.

For MRITUNJAY SHEKHAR & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
Sd/-
MRITUNJAY CHANDRA SHEKHAR
ACS/ FCS No.: 17250
C P No.: 20871
UDIN : A017250E000257820
Peer Review No. 2919/2023
Date: 05-05-2023
Place: NEW DELHI
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ANNEXURE IV TO DIRECTORS” REPORT

REPLY OF MTNL TO QUALIFICATIONS IN SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT,
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
OF MTNL FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

S.

No.

Qualifications

Observations/Remarks of the Company

1.

One Half of the Board
was not comprised of
Independent Directors from
01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023.

MTNL is a Public Sector Undertaking. All appointments
including Independent Directors on the Board are
made by the Administrative Ministry, Government of
India, i.e. Ministry of Communications & Information
Technology. For the Quarter ended 31.03.2023, MTNL
had four Executive Directors, two Govt. Nominee
Directors and five Independent Director (including one
women independent director) on its Board. In order
to comply with provisions of Regulation 17(1) of SEBI
(LODR) 2015, we need six independent directors i.e.
fifty percent of the total strength as we have six directors
(including four functional and two Government
Nominee directors including Executive Chairman).
Hence MTNL needs one more independent director on
its Board as on 31.03.2023 for which we have already
sent letter to the Government of India. Due to non-
appointment of one more Independent Director, we
were unable to comply with provisions relating to Board
Composition (Regulation 17) i.e. Half of the Board is not
Independent from 01.04.2022 till 31.03.2023.The matter
for appointment of one more Independent Director has
already been taken up with the Government of India.

The Company has not
complied with the
Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) of
the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

The Company is in process of arranging the Hardware
and Software requirement for installation of SDD
Software. The Company has entered into agreement
with M/s KP Corporate Solutions Limited for providing
necessary SDD software.
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ANNEXURE V TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the Financial Year ended on 31t March, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN: - L32101DL1986GOI023501
Registration Date:- 28" February, 1986

Name of the Company: -Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited
Category/ Sub-Category of the Company: - Government of India Enterprises

Address of the Registered office and contacts details: -Mahanagar Doorsanchar Sadan, 5"
Floor, 9, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, Tel:- 011-24319020, Fax 011- 24324243

Whether listed company Yes / No: - Yes

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, If any: - M/s Beetal
Financial and Computer Services (Pvt) Ltd., 3rd Floor, Beetal House, 99, Madangir, Behind
Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi-110062, Ph:011-29961281-
82, Fax:011-29961284, Email ID: beetalrta@gmail.com, beetal@beetalfinancial.com, website:
www.beetalfinancial.com .

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: -

S.N Name and Description of the main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
.No. . .
products/ services Product/services of the company
1 Telecommunication Service 611&612 100%
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Holding / | % of .
I\SI;) Name al&irﬁd:;ess of the CIN/GIN Subsidiary/| Shares Al;ziigsgle
pany Associate | Held
1 |Mahanagar Telephone N.A. Wholly 100% 2(87)
Mauritius Limited (MTML) Owned
MTML Square, 63, Cyber Overseas
City, Ebene City, Mauritius Subsidiary
2 |Millennium Telecom Ltd.  |U64200DL2000GOI1333459 |Wholly 100% 2 (87)
(MTL) Owned
Room No. 4208, 4"Floor Indian
Mahanagar Doorsanchar Subsidiary
Sadan, 9 CGO Complex,
Lodhi Road, New Delhi-
110003.
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3 | MTNL STPI IT Services U72901DL2006PLC148310 | Joint 50% 2(6)
Ltd. (MSITS), Mahanagar Venture
Doorsanchar Sadan, 5t
Floor, 9, CGO Complex,
LodhiRoad, New
Delhi-110003
4 |United Telecommunications|N.A. Associate  |26.68% 2(6)
Ltd. (UTL) Triveni
Complex, Putali Sadak,
Kathmandu.
SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
No. of Shares held at the Beginning of the Year| No. of Shares held at the end of the Yeari.e. 9% Change
Category of Share- i.e. 01/04/2022 31/03/2023 ° durin &
holders . % of Total . % of Total 8
Demat | Physical Total Demat |Physical| Total the Year
Shares Shares
A) Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00 0
b) Central govt/ 354378740 0| 354378740 56.25| 354378740 0| 354378740 56.25 0
State Govt(s)
Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
Sub-Total (A) (1):- | 354378740 0| 354378740 56.25| 354378740 0| 354378740 56.25 0
(2) Foreign
2) NRIs- Individ- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
uals
b) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
¢) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
d) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
Sub-Total (A) (2):- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
Total Sharehold-
ing of Promoter | 354378740 0| 354378740 56.25| 354378740 0| 354378740 56.25 0
(A)=(A)1D)+(A)(2)
B. Public Share-
holding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 100 4400 4500 0.00 100 4400 4500 0.00 0
b) Banks/Fl/ Insur- | g0 )07 2200 86649276 13.75| 86647076 2200| 86649276 13.75 0
ance Companies
¢) Central Govt/ 2500 0 2500 0.00 3500 0 3500 0.00 -0
State Govt.
e) Venture Capital 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
Funds
f) Foreign Fin Inst./
Banks/ Foreign 2283326 600 2283926 0.33 2954255 0| 2954255 0.33 0
Portfolio Investors
g) Foreign Venture
Capital Punds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
h) Others(Specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
(i)Stressed Asset 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
Sub-Total (B)(1):- | 88933002 7200 88940202 14.08 89604931 6600 89611531 14.08 -0

475
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No. of Shares held at the Beginning of the Year| No. of Shares held at the end of the Yeari.e.

0,
Category of Share- i.e. 01/04/2022 31/03/2023 o d?r‘ia:ge
holders . % of Total . % of Total 8
Demat | Physical Total Demat |Physical| Total the Year
Shares Shares
2. Non Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. (In-| 77735051 6000 7279320 1.16 6690519 6000 6696519 1.06 -0.09
dian & Overseas)
b) Individuals
(i) Individual
Shareholders
holding nominal 100295367 60502 100355869 15.93 98835073 50735| 98885808 15.70 -0.23
Share Capital Upto
Rs. 2 lakh
(ii) Individual
Shareholders hold-
ing nominal Share 59373560 0 59373560 9.42 61403326 49517| 61452843 9.75 0.33
Capital in excess of
Rs. 2 lakh
¢) Others (Specify)
Trusts 468990 0 468990 0.07 442980 0 442980 0.07 -0
Foreign Nationals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
NRI & Foreign 2111875 0 2111875 0.34 1791595 600| 1792195 0.28 -0.05
Corporate Bodies
I‘;e‘g Clearing Mem-| 119549 0 1119569 0.18 979906 o 979906 0.16 -0.02
HUF 8932481 0 8932481 1.42 9495202 0 9495202 1.51 0.089
Sub-Total (B)(2):- | 179575162 66502 179641664 28.51 179638601 106852 179745453 28.53 0.016
Total Public
Shareholding 268508164 73702 268581866 42.60 269243532| 113452| 269356984 42.61 0.015
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held
by Custodian for 7039394 0 7039394 1.12 6264276 0 6264276 0.99 -0.12
GDRs & ADRs
((j:f;fc"l;otal 629926298 73702 630000000 100.00 629886548 113452 630000000 100.00 0
CATEGORY-WISE SHAREHOLDING
i) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS DURING F.Y. 2022-23
Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Shareholding at the end of the year
as on 01.04.2022 as on 31.03.2023 % Ch g
% of Shares % of o \-hange In
Shareholder’s o ° % of total shareholding
S NO. % of total Pledged/ .
Name Pledged/ shares during the
No. of shares [shares of the No. of shares of the encumbered
company encumbered to total year
to total shares CClI Py shares
1. PRESIDENT OF 354378740 56.25 Nil 354378740 56.25 Nil Nil
INDIA
Total 354378740 56.25 Nil 354378740 56.25 Nil Nil

(i) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING DURING THE F.Y. 2022-23 (PLEASE
SPECIFY, IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

B .Sha.reholdlng at the Cumulative Shareholding during the year
eginning of the year as on (2022-23)
S NO. 01.04.2022

% of total shares % of total shares of
No. of shares
of the company the company

354378740 56.25 354378740 56.25

No. of Shares

At the beginning of the year (as
on 01.04.2022)
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Date wise Increase/ Decrease
in Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the
reason for increase/ decrease
(e.g. allotment/ transfer/ bonus/
sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year (as on
31.03.2023)

# There is no change in the Total Shareholding of Promoters i.e. President of India between
01.04.2022 and 31.03.2023 (during F.Y. 2022-23).

N.A. N.A.

354378740 56.25 354378740 56.25

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs) as on 31.03.2023:

q - Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholding at the beginning of the year as on 01.04.2022 during the year (2022-23)
No. of
S. Shares at the o
NO. NAME beginning % of total /glec:re:::e /osﬁfa:'g;al
of the year |[shares of the] DATE : Reason No. of shares
in of the
(rieoir>) Company shareholdin, compan
end of the year 8 pany
(31.03.2022)
1 |LIFEINSURANCE
CORPORATION 82659957 13.1206 31-Mar-22 NIL 82659957 13.1206
OF INDIA MOVEMENT
82659957 13.1206 31-Mar-23 DURING 82659957 13.1206
0 . THE YEAR 0
2 |KAMLESH B
SHAH 8039765 1.2762 31-Mar-22 NIL 8039765 1.2762
MOVEMENT
8039765 1.2762 31-Mar-23 DURING 8039765 1.2762
0 . THE YEAR 0
3 |THE BANK OF
NEW YORK 7039394 1.1174 31-Mar-22 0
MELLON 0 07-Oct-22 | 27400  |Sell 7011994 1.113
0 28-Oct-22 -747718 Sell 6264276 0.9943
0 24-Feb-23 -2156 Sell 6262120 0.994
6262120 0.994 31-Mar-23 6262120 0.994
0 -- 0
4 |PRAKASH
BABALAL SHAH 2149900 0.3413 31-Mar-22 NIL 2149900 0.3413
MOVEMENT
2149900 0.3413 31-Mar-23 DURING 2149900 0.3413
0 . THE YEAR 0
5 |ELARA INDIA
OPPORTUNITIES 1611000 0.2557 31-Mar-22 NIL 1611000 0.2557
FUND LIMITED MOVEMENT
1611000 0.2557 31-Mar-23 DURING 1611000 0.2557
0 . THE YEAR 0
6 |THE NEW INDIA
ASSURANCE 1594544 0.2531 31-Mar-22 NIL 1594544 0.2531
COMPANY MOVEMENT
LIMITED 1594544 0.2531 31-Mar-23 DURING 1594544 0.2531
0 . THE YEAR 0
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q Aa Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholding at the beginning of the year as on 01.04.2022 during the year (2022-23)
No. of
S. Shares at the ®
NO. NAME beginning % of total /g:::::e Y °S(})12:‘2;a1
of the year |shares of the] DATE A Reason No. of shares
in of the
W) (CLIHREERY shareholdin compan
end of the year 8 pany
(31.03.2022)
7 |THE ORIENTAL
INSURANCE 1392970 0.2211 31-Mar-22 NIL 1392970 0.2211
COMPANY MOVEMENT
LIMITED 1392970 0.2211 31-Mar-23 DURING 1392970 0.2211
THE YEAR
0 -- 0
8 |RAVIKUMAR
RAMKISHORE 1058000 0.1679 31-Mar-22 NIL 1058000 0.1679
SANWALKA MOVEMENT
1058000 0.1679 31-Mar-23 DURING 1058000 0.1679
0 B THE YEAR 0
9 |RAJESH KUMAR N
SAHU 1700000 0.2698 31-Mar-22 0
0 27-May-22 10000 Purchase 1710000 0.2714
0 03-Jun-22 15000 Purchase 1725000 0.2738
0 19-Aug-22 25000 Purchase 1750000 0.2778
0 23-Dec-22 27887 Purchase 1777887 0.2822
0 31-Dec-22 12113 Purchase 1790000 0.2841
0 06-Jan-23 10000 Purchase 1800000 0.2857
0 24-Feb-23 -825000 Sell 975000 0.1548
975000 0.1548 31-Mar-23 975000 0.1548
0 -- 0
10 SET;I];?& BANK | 991746 01431 |31-Mar-22 N oVEMENT| 901746 0.1431
DURING
901746 0.1431 31-Mar-23 THE YEAR 901746 0.1431

(v) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AS ON

315T MARCH 2023:
Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
th 1.04.2022 th FY 2022-2
o For Each of the Directors and KMP e year as on 01.04.20 e year ( U2z
No. % of total shares % of total shares of
No. of shares No. of shares
of the company the company
1. |Pravin Kumar Purwar, CMD NIL NIL
Rajiv Kumar , Director (Finance)
2 Appointed Director w.e.f. 02.12.2022) NIL NIL
V Ramesh Director (Technical) Appointed
3. Director w.e.f. 01.04.2022) NIL NIL
Yojana Das, Director (Finance) (Ceased to be
4. Director w.e.f. 30.11.2022) NIL NIL
Arvind Vadnerkar, Director (HR&EB)
5 (Appointed Director w.e.f. 01.09.2021) NIL NIL
Navneet Gupta, Govt. Nominee Director
6. (Ceased to be Director w.e.f. 17.05.2022) NIL NIL
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Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
th 01.04.2022 th FY 2022-23
For Each of the Directors and KMP ¢ year &5 on e year ( )
No. % of total shares % of total shares of
No. of shares
of the company the company

No. of shares

Amitabh Ranjan Sinha, Govt. Nominee

7. | Director (Ceased to be Director w.e.f. NIL NIL
30.05.2022)
Sunil Kumar Verma, Govt. Nominee

8. | Director (Appointed to be Director w.e.f. NIL NIL
23.11.2022)

Shivendu Gupta, Govt. Nominee Director

o (Appointed to be Director w.e.f. 05.01.2023) NIL NIL
Vishwas Pathak, Independent Director

10. (Appointed Director w.e.f. 12.11.2021) NIL NIL
Deepika Mahajan, Independent Director

1. (Appointed Director w.e.f. 23.11.2021) NIL NIL
Sarv Daman Bhagat, Independent Director

12. (Appointed Director w.e.f. 12.11.2021) NIL NIL
Yogesh Kumar Tamrakar, Independent

13. | Director (Appointed Director w.e.f. NIL NIL
12.11.2021)
S.R. Sayal, Company Secretary (Ceased to be

14. Company Secretary as on 28.02.2023) NIL NIL
Ratan Mani Sumit, Company Secretary

15. | (Appointed as a Company Secretary on NIL NIL

01.03.2023)
V. INDEBTEDNESS

(a) Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment during F.Y. 2022-23 as per Ind AS

(in Crores)

D ANS | UNSECURED LOANS DEPOSITS TOTAL
DEPOSITS (LTL) BOND+STL+OD INDEBTNESS

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the Financial Year as on
01.04.2022
i) Principal Amount 10,186.12 16,420.35 26,606.47
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due 437 244.92 24929
Total (i+ii+iii) 10,190.49 16,665.27 26,855.76
Change in Indebtedness during
the Financial Year 2022-23
Addition 7,205.28 7,205.28
Reduction 5,362.09 5,362.09
Net Change 5,362.09 7,205.28 1,843.19
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year as on 31.03.2023
i) Principal Amount 4,822.96 23,351.05 28,174.01
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due 5.44 519.51 524.94
Total (i+ii+iii) 4,828.40 23,870.56 28,698.95
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Note: Government of India approved the financial support to the Company in the year 2014
and on surrender of Broadband Wireless Access (BWA) Spectrum by MTNL, upfront charges
paid by the Company in the year 2011 for such spectrum amounting to Rs. 4533.97 crores were
agreed to be funded by way of issuance of debentures by the Company on behalf of Government
of India (GOI) and for which GOI provided sovereign guarantee with attendant condition for
repayment of principal on maturity as well as the interest payments through DOT. Accordingly,
the Company does not have any liability toward repayment of principal and interest on the
bonds issued and has been offset against the amount recoverable from DOT of equivalent
amount.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole - time Directors and/or Manager during the
F.Y. 2022-23:

NAME OF MD/WTD/MANAGER
5 5 Yojana Das Director V.Ramesh, Rajiv Kumar, TOTAL
S. | PARTICULARS OF Iliii‘rg VaAdl;:Iel?li . (Finance) Director (Technical) | Director (Finance) | AMOUNT
NO. | REMUNERATION . ! (Ceased to be (Appointed (Appointed IN RUPEES
Purwar, Director X . .
CMD (HR & EB) Director w.e.f. Director w.e.f. 01. director w.e.f.
30.11.2022) 04.2022) 02.12.2022),

1. |Gross salary

Salary as per

provisions contained

in section 17(1) of the

Income tax Act, 1961

Value of perquisites

u/s 17(2) Tncome —tax NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Act, 1961

Profits in lieu of

salary under section

17(3) Income-tax Act,

1961
2. |stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
4. [Commission

As % of profit NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Other, specify...
5. |Others, please specify

(Gratuity + LE) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (A) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other Directors during the F.Y. 2022-23: -

S NAME OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS Piyush
’ Particulars of Remuneration Deenpik Sarv D Yogesh K Ranjan
No. eepika arv Daman . ‘ogesh Kumar :
Mahajan Bharat VAL TTE LS Tamrakar Nishad
1. |Independent Directors
Fee for attending Board and its
2. |committee meetings, Commission, 90000 80000 80000 NIL* 20000
Others, please specify
3. |Total (1) 90000 80000 80000 NIL| 20000
Navneet Gupta | Amitabh Ranjan | Sunil Kumar Shivendu Gupta
4. | Other Non-Executive Directors (C'eased to be Slnh.a (Ceased to V'erma (Appointed (Appomted
director w.e.f. |be director w.e.f.|director w.e.f. director w.e.f.
17.05.2022) 30.05.2022) 23.112022) 05.01.2023)
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Overall Ceiling as per the Act

MTNL
Fee for attending Board Committee
5. E)/{sz’;ien;g;écci?;nmission, Others, NIL NIL NIL NIL
6. |Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL
7. |Total (B)=(1+2) 90000 80000 80000 NIL| 20000
8. |TOTAL MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION (A+B) Rs. 270000
9.

C Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD during the F.Y.

2022-23: -

S.NO. Particulars of

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

RN Eration CHIEF FINANCIAL TOTAL (Amount in
OFFICER (CFO) COMPANY SECRETARY (CS) Rs)
Sultan Ahmed S.R. Sayal Ratan Mani Sumit
(Appointed CFO (Ceased to be Company |(Appointed
w.e.f. 14.02.2023) Secretary w.e.f. 28.02.2023) | Company Secretary
w.e.f. 01.03.2023)
Gross salary Salary
as per provisions
contained in section
1. gilli&f tl};%i“mme - 420185 25,27,170 150338 30,97,693
’ .. 4680 59578 NIL 64,258
Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
2. |Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3. |Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
Commission as % of
4. Profit Others, specify NIL NIL NIL NIL
5. | Others, please specify - - - NIL
Total 424865 2586748 150338 3161951

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES DURING THE E.Y.

2022-23: --- NIL

Type
Act

Section of the
Companies

Brief
Description

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding fees
imposed

Authority[RD/
NCLT/COURT]

Appeal

made,

if any

(give details)

COMPANY

Penalty

Compounding

DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

OTHER OFFICERS IN
DEFAULT

Penalty

Compounding

NIL

i 53 1
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ANNEXURE VI TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance encompasses achieving the balance
between Shareholder's interest and Corporate Goals through the efficient conduct of its
business and meeting its Stakeholder’s obligation in a manner that is guided by Transparency,
Accountability and Integrity. The Companies Act, 2013 together with the Companies Rules
and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [SEBI (LODR),
Regulations, 2015] applicable for all listed entities including MTNL provide a robust
framework for Corporate Governance. MTNL is complying with relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Rules made there under and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for good
Corporate Governance. As MTNL being a PSU, is also complying with the Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Finance, Government of India.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(I) The Composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Category of Directors Board Structure %‘:‘ﬁirscie;%;gzgs

Chairman & Managing Director 1 1
Whole-time Executive (Functional) Directors 3 3
Part-time Official Directors (Government Nominees)

representing the Department of Telecommunication (DoT), 2 2
Government of India

Part-time Non-official (Independent) Directors 6 5

Total 12 11

The Company has a very balanced and diversified Board of Directors with an optimum mix of
Executive [represented by CMD, Director (HR & EB), Director (Technical) and Director (Finance)
and Non-Executive [represented by Government Directors and Independent Directors]. As on
31.03.2023, MTNL had four Executive Directors, two Government Nominee Directors and five
Independent Directors on its Board. There is one Women Independent Director on the Board of
MTNL as on 31.03.2023.

As on 31.03.2023, the Composition of the Board was not in conformity with Regulations 17
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149 of the Act and DPE Guidelines on
Corporate Governance. Due to non-appointment of one Independent Director till 31.03.2023,
MTNL was unable to comply with provisions relating to Board Composition (Regulation 17) i.e.
Half of the Board is not Non — Executive.

MTNL is a Public Sector Undertaking. All appointments including Independent Directors
on the Board are done by the Administrative Ministry, Government of India, i.e. Ministry of
Communications, Department of Telecommunications. The matter for appointment of one more
Independent Directors has already been taken up with the Government of India.
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(IT) Board Level Committee in MTNL

The Board has constituted five mandatory Board Level Committees under the Companies
Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) namely Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, CSR Committee and Enterprise Risk
Management Committee. These Board Level Committees mainly consist of Independent/Non-
Executive Directors. The meetings of these Committees are held whenever required. The details
are given elsewhere in this report. The minutes of all the Board Level Committee Meetings are
circulated and discussed in the Board Meetings.

() (A) The List of Directors & Chairmanship/Membership in Board Level Committee in
MTNL (as on 31.03.2023) and their Directorship in other Companies are given below: -

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board meetings
held during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held through Video-
Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means and the number of Directorships and Committee
Chairmanships/Memberships held by them in other Public Limited Companies as on March 31,
2023 are given below. Other directorships do not include directorships of associations, Private
Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies Incorporated under Section 8 of the Act,
Government Bodies and Alternate Directorships. For the purpose of determination of limit of the
Board Committees, Chairmanship and Membership of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee has been considered as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORSHIP AU ICOLT IR

NAME CATEGORY CHAIRMANSHIP AND
IN OTHER COMPANIES MEMBERSHIP IN MTNL
PRAVIN KUMAR EXECUTIVE 1. BSNL-CMD NIL
PURWAR 2. BHARAT BROADBAND NETWORK
CMD LIMITED - CMD
DIN :06619060 3. MTNLSTPIIT Services Ltd. — Chairman &
Director

4. BSNL Tower Corporation Ltd — Director

5. Mahanagar Telephone Mauritius Ltd (MTML) -
Chairman & Director

6. United Telecom Ltd — Director

ARVIND VADNERKAR |EXECUTIVE 1. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL)- Chairman — CSR Committee
DIRECTOR (HR&EB) Director
DIN : 08597016 2. MTNLSTPIIT Services Ltd. — Director
3. Millennium Telecom Ltd. - Chairman &

Director
RAJIV KUMAR, EXECUTIVE 1. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL)- Chairman -Enterprise Risk
DIRECTOR (FINANCE) Director Management Committee
DIN: 09811051 2. BSNL Tower Corporation Ltd — Director Member - Stakeholders
(Appointed Director 3. MTNLSTPIIT Services Ltd. — Director Relationship Committee and
w.e.f. 02.12.2022) 4. Bharat Broadband Network Limited- Director |CSR Committee
V RAMESH EXECUTIVE 1. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL)- Member - Enterprise Risk
DIRECTOR Director Management Committee
(TECHNICAL) 2. BSNL Tower Corporation Ltd — Director
DIN : 08771524 3. MTNLSTPIIT Services Ltd. — Director.
(Appointed Director 4. Bharat Broadband Network Limited- Director

w.e.f. 01.04.2022)
SUNIL KUMAR VERMA | GOVERNMENT | 1. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL)- Director | Chairman -Stakeholders

DIN : 09800644 NOMINEE Relationship Committee
(Appointed Director DIRECTOR Member - Nomination &
w.e.f. 23.11.2022) Remuneration Committee
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DETAILS OF COMMITTEE
NAME CATEGORY DEIT\? g‘;H%l;{%IgE/I%K?\II}S?IP CHAIRMANSHIP AND
MEMBERSHIP IN MTNL
SHIVENDU GUPTA GOVERNMENT [1. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL)- Director | Member - Audit Committee
DIN: 09850201 NOMINEE
(Appointed Director DIRECTOR
w.e.f. 05.01.2023)
VISHWAS PATHAK INDEPENDENT | 1. Maharashtra State Power Generation Company |Chairman - Audit Committee
DIN: 00093771 DIRECTOR Limited Member - Enterprise Risk
2. MSEB Holding Company Limited Management Committee &
3. Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution CSR Committee
Company Limited
4. Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission
Company Limited
SARV DAMAN INDEPENDENT Member - Audit Committee,
BHARAT DIRECTOR Nomination & Remuneration
DIN: 09393017 Committee & Stakeholders
Relationship Committee
DEEPIKA MAHAJAN INDEPENDENT Chairperson - Nomination &
DIN: 09408802 DIRECTOR Remuneration Committee
Member - Audit Committee &
CSR Committee
YOGESH KUMAR INDEPENDENT 1. Vindhya Boards Pvt Ltd
TAMRAKAR DIRECTOR 2. Yogi Builders Pvt Ltd NIL
DIN: 00070734
PIYUSH RANJAN INDEPENDENT
NISHAD DIRECTOR
DIN: 09579746 NIL
(Appointed Director
w.e.f. 21.04.2022)

(B) LIST OF DIRECTORS IN MTNL WHO RETIRED DURING THE PERIOD 01.04.2022 TO

31.03.2023.
Sl : c
No. Name of the Director Category Date of Cessation
1. | NAVNEET GUPTA GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR 17.05.2022
2. | AMITABH RANJAN SINHA GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR 30.05.2022
3. | PREMJIT LAL GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR 17.11.2022
4. | YOJANA DAS DIRECTOR (FINANCE) 30.11.2022
5. | YASHASHRI SHUKLA GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR 26.12.2022
(C) LIST OF DIRECTORS IN MTNL WHO WERE APPOINTED DURING THE PERIOD
01.04.2022 TO 31.03.2023.
S1 . Date of
No Name of the Director Category e e T
1. | VRAMESH DIRECTOR (TECHNICAL) 01.04.2022
2. | PIYUSH RANJAN NISHAD INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 21.04.2022
3. | PREMJIT LAL GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR 17.05.2022
4. | YASHASHRI SHUKLA GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR 26.05.2022
5. | SUNIL KUMAR VERMA GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR 23.11.2022
6. | RAJIVKUMAR DIRECTOR (FINANCE) 02.12.2022
7. | SHIVENDU GUPTA GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR 05.01.2023
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(D) CHANGES IN THE LIST OF DIRECTORS & CHAIRMANSHIP/MEMBERSHIP IN
BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEE IN MTNL (BETWEEN 01.04.2023 AND 31.07.2023) AND
THEIR DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER COMPANIES: -NIL

None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other and there are no inter-se
relationships between the Directors. As on March 31, 2023, none of the Directors hold equity
shares in the Company. The Company has not issued any convertible instruments. None
of the Directors on the Board is a Director in more than 7 listed entities. None of the Non -
Executive Directors is an Independent Director in more than 7 listed entities as required under
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. Further, CMD and other functional directors do not serve
as Independent Directors in any listed company. None of the Directors held Directorships
in more than 20 Indian Companies, with more than 10 Public Limited Companies. None
of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of 5
Committees (Committees being Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee)
across all Public Companies in India, in which he/she is a Director.

All Directors are in compliance with the limit on Directorships/Independent Directorships
of Listed Companies as prescribed under Regulation 17A of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

Necessary disclosures i.e., Form MBP-11i.e., Notice of Interest by Director for the pursuant to
Section 184(1) of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 (1) of Companies (Meeting of Board and
its Power) Rule 2014 have been obtained from all the directors. Also Certificate pursuant to
Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 regarding Membership/Chairmanship of
Board Level Committee for the Financial Year 2022-23 has been taken from all the directors.

(IV) Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings during the Financial Year 2022-23 and in
the last Annual General Meeting (36" AGM held on 10.10.2022).

The Company holds regular Board Meetings as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and adheres to the Secretarial Standards on the Board & Committee Meetings as
prescribed by The Institute of Company Secretary of India (ICSI). The Board has complete
access to all information of the Company. The Company Secretary in consultation with
the Chairman & Managing Director sends a written notice of each Board Meeting to each
Director. The agenda papers containing all necessary information/documents are available to
the Board/Committee Members in advance to enable them to discharge their responsibilities
effectively and take informed decisions. The information as specified in the SEBI
(LODR) Regulation, 2015 is regularly made available to the Board, whenever applicable,
for discussion & consideration. The directors can suggest inclusion of any item(s) in the
agenda at the Board meeting. The agenda is placed before the Board inter alia includes the
information as mentioned in Schedule II Part A of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015. During the
Financial Year 2022-23, a total of 04 meetings of the Board were held and the gap between
two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The necessary quorum was
present in all the meetings as per the Companies Act 2013. The minutes of the meetings
of all the Board and Committees are circulated to all the Directors after incorporating the
comments of the Directors.
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NO. OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDANCE AT THE
NAME OF THE ATTENDED 1883V LC1H13 LAST AGM i.e. 36™
DIRECTOR HELD DURING |~ i ATTEII{,RANCE AGM (HELD ON e
THEIR TENURE THEIR TENURE ° 10.10.2022)

PRAVIN KUMAR o,

PURWAR, CMD 4 4 100% Yes

YOJANA DAS, Ceased to be

DIRECTOR Director of MTNL

(FINANCE) 3 3 100% YES Wef 30.11.2022

ARVIND

VADNERKAR 4 4 100% YES

DIRECTOR (HR&EB)

V.RAMESH Was Appointed

DIRECTOR 4 4 100% NO Director w.e.f.

(TECHNICAL) 01.04.2022

RAJIV KUMAR, Was Appointed

DIRECTOR 1 1 100% NA Director w.e.f.

(FINANCE) 02.12.2022

NAVNEET GUPTA, Ceased to be

GOVERNMENT NA NA NA NA Director of MTNL

NOMINEE DIRECTOR w.e.f. 17.05.2022

AMITABH Ceased to be

RANJAN SINHA, Director of MTNL

GOVERNMENT NA NA NA NA w.e.f. 30.05.2022

NOMINEE DIRECTOR

PREMJIT LAL, Was Appointed

GOVERNMENT Director w.e.f.

NOMINEE DIRECTOR 3 1 33.33% NO 17.05.2022 &
Ceased to be
Director of MTNL
w.e.f. 17.11.2022

YASHASHRI Was Appointed

SHUKLA, Director w.e.f.

GOVERNMENT 3 0 0 YES 26.05.2022 &

NOMINEE DIRECTOR Ceased to be
Director of MTNL
w.e.f. 26.12.2022

VISHWAS PATHAK

INDEPENDENT 4 4 100% YES

DIRECTOR

SARV DAMAN

BHARAT

INDEPENDENT 4 3 75% YES

DIRECTOR

DEEPIKA MAHAJAN

INDEPENDENT

DIRECTOR 4 4 100% YES

YOGESH KUMAR

TAMRAKAR

INDEPENDENT 4 2 50% NO

DIRECTOR

PIYUSH RANJAN Was Appointed

NISHAD Director w.e.f.

INDEPENDENT 4 2 50% NO 21.04.2022

DIRECTOR

sk
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(V) DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND DATES & PLACES AT WHICH HELD DURING
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23 (01.04.2022 TO 31.03.2023) ARE GIVEN BELOW: -

S.No.| Meeting No. Date Place No. of Directors present
1 350 30.05.2022 New Delhi 9/11
2 351 12.08.2022 New Delhi 7/11
3 352 14.11.2022 New Delhi 8/11
4 353 14.02.2023 New Delhi 10/11

(VI) INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Independent Directors are appointed by the Govt. of India and hold the position of Non-
executive Directors as defined under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015
read with Section 149(6) of the Act. The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is three
years. As required under Regulation 46(2)(b) of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, the Company will
give Formal Letter of Appointment to Independent Directors. The terms and conditions of their
appointment will be posted on the Company’s website. Each newly appointed Independent
Director will be provided with an appointment letter which sets out their Role, Functions, Duties
& Responsibilities and copy of the Code of Conduct is also made available to them.

On 21.04.2022, One Independent director i.e. Shri Piyush Ranjan Nishad has been appointed
by the Govt. of India. The total number of Independent directors as on 31.03.2023 now stands
at 5 (five). Formal Letter of Appointment was given to him and is also uploaded in the website
https://mtnl.in/letterofappointment.pdf.

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, Independent directors have
to confirm that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be
reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with
an objective independent judgment and without any external influence. The above declaration
under Regulation 25(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, regarding compliance with Regulation 16(b)
has been obtained from the Independent directors and the Board of directors has confirmed that
the Independent Directors has fulfilled the conditions specified in SEBI (LODR) Regulations
and are independent of the Management.

The Independent Directors are paid an amount of Rs.10,000/- towards sitting fees for attending
each meeting of the Board or any Committee thereof. The out-of-pocket expenses such as travel
expenses & hotel expenses etc. incurred by Independent Directors for attending such meetings
are also reimbursed.

The Sitting fees paid to the Independent Directors during the Financial Year 2022-23 is as under:

Sitting fees
Committee Meetings
S1. | Name Of the Independent Cva— Total
T Director Board Audit csg | Nomination &| Stakeholder nlgg’l? S€ | Amount
Mestings Committee | Committee Smericn iy Management| R o
: 9 upees
Committee Committee Committee

1. |SARV DAMAN BHARAT 30000 30000 NA 10000 10000 NA| 80000
2¢. |DEEPIKA MAHAJAN 40000 40000 NA 10000 NA NA| 90000
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3#, |VISHWAS PATHAK 30000 40000 NA NA NA 10000| 80000
YOGESH KUMAR
X%
4 | L MRAKAR NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
5. |PIYUSH RANJAN NISHAD 20000 NA NA NA NA NA| 20000
*Ms. Deepika Mahajan attended Audit Committee Meeting on 12.08.2022 and 14.11.2022 as

Special Invitee.

**Shri Vishwas Pathak did not take sitting fees for Board & Audit Committee held on 30.05.2022
respectively

***Shri Yogesh Tamrakar, Independent Directors of MTNL has relinquished their right to receive
the sitting fees for attending the Board and its Committee Meetings.

(VII) MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company without the presence of the
Functional Directors & the Management Representatives was held on February 14, 2023 as
required under Schedule IV to the Act (Code for Independent Directors) and Regulation
25 (3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

All the Independent Directors except Shri Piyush Ranjan Nishad of the Company attended
the Meeting of Independent Directors held on February 14, 2023. The Independent
Directors expressed their satisfaction to the desired level on the governance of the Board.

(VIII) SERVICE CONTRACTS AND SEVERANCE FEE

The Chairman-cum-Managing Director (CMD) and other Executive Directors are
appointed by the Government of India, Government Nominee directors are also
appointed by the President of India and hold office till further orders. Govt. Directors are
not entitled for any remuneration in the form of sitting fees or reimbursement of expenses
etc. Independent Directors are also appointed by the Government of India for a period of
three years or till further orders whichever is earlier. There is no provision for payment of
severance fees to directors.

(VIII) FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR DIRECTORS

IX)

All Directors on the Board (including Independent Directors) are appointed by the Govt.
of India. Training of newly appointed Directors and familiarization of all the Board
Members is the responsibility of the Company. The Familiarization Programme includes
the presentation & Interactive Session with CMD, other Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. The Company Secretary briefs the Director about the Legal & Regulatory
responsibilities as a Director. Also Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) organizes
various orientation programmes for newly appointed Independent Directors of Public
Sector Undertakings (PSU). The Familiarization Programme is uploaded in company’s
website and can be accessed at https://mtnl.in/directors.html

SEPARATION OF POSTS OF CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Separation of posts of Chairman & Chief Executive Officer which is made as discretionary
requirement vide amendment to LODR issued on 22.03.2022 to Part -E of Schedule -II
read with Regulation 27 of LODR is not applicable as it is discretionary only and also as
appointment of CMDs in PSUs is made by Govt. for a tenure of 5 years.
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(X) INTERNAL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING IN
DEALING WITH SECURITIES OF MTNL

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors of the
Company has adopted the Revised Internal Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading in Dealing with Securities of MTNL. All the Directors, Employees of the Company
and their immediate relatives and other connected persons who could have access to the
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information of the Company, are governed under this Insider
Trading Code. The Company Secretary of the Company is the “‘Compliance Officer’ for the
purpose of this Regulation. The policy is available in the following link https://mtnl.in/
internalcodeofconduct.pdf

(XI) SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES IDENTIFIED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF MTNL

As required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the list of core skills/ expertise/
competencies as identified by the Board of Directors in the context of its business and sector
for it to function effectively and those available with the Board are as under:

Matrix of skills / expertise/competencies:

a) Knowledge: Understanding of the Company’s business, policies and culture (including
its mission, vision, values, goals, current strategic plan, governance structure, major
risks and threats and potential opportunities) and knowledge of the industry in which
the Company operates.

b) Behavioural Skills: Attributes and Competencies to use their knowledge and skills to
function well as a team-members and to interact with key stakeholders.

¢) Strategic thinking and Planning: Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices,
and experience in guiding and leading management teams to make decisions in
uncertain environments.

d) Financial Skills

e) Governance: Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best interest
of all stakeholders, maintaining Board and Management accountability, building long-
term effective stakeholders engagements and driving corporate ethics and values.

f) Technical/Professional skills and specialized Knowledge to assist the ongoing aspects
of the business. The Board of the Company is highly structured to ensure a high degree
of diversity by age, education/qualifications, professional background, sector expertise
and special skills.

The Board of Directors of MTNL has formulated the job description for the posts of CMD and
other Functional Directors as under :-
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POST OF
S.NO. | FUNCTIONAL SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES REQUIRED
DIRECTOR
1. CMD Applicant should have proven Managerial Ability in manning a large

Telecom Organization. Engineering Graduate candidates shall be preferred.
He should possess leadership quality, vision and drive etc. He should be
a Person of Outstanding Personality, Professional Competency and proven
Managerial Ability. As the Head of the organization, he/she should be able
to co-ordinate and interact effectively with various other institutions and
agencies.

Shri P.K.Purwar the present CMD is having the requisite qualification and
experience. Further w.ef. 15.04.2020, he was entrusted with additional
charge of CMD apart from a Regular Charge of CMD of BSNL.Addjitional
charge of CMD BBNL is also entrusted with him.

2. Director (HR

The incumbent should have Post Graduate Degree/Diploma in Personnel
Management or M.B.A. with specialization in Personnel Management/
Industrial Relations. A degree in Law will be an added advantage. A
Person should have vast experiences in Industrial Relations & in a Service/
Manufacturing Sector.

Shri Arvind Vadnerkar the present Director (HR & EB) is having the requisite
qualification and experience. Further w.e.f. 01.09.2021 he was entrusted with
additional charge of Director (HR) apart from his Regular Charge of Director
(HR) of BSNL.

The incumbent should possess a Cost Accountant/Chartered Accountant/
MBA (Finance) degree from a recognized University/Institution with good
academic record with managerial experience at a senior level in Corporate
Financial Management and accounts including Cost, Budgetary Control,
Institutional Finance, Working Capital Management etc.

Shri Rajiv Kumar, the present Director (Finance) is having the requisite
qualification and experience. Further w.e.f. 02.12.2022 he was entrusted with
additional charge of Director(Finance) apart from his Regular Charge of
Director(Finance) of BSNL.Additional charge of Director(Finance) BBNL is
also entrusted with him.

& EB)
3. Director
(Finance)
4, Director
(Technical)

The incumbent should be an Engineering Graduate or equivalent preferably
in Telecommunications Engineering with good academic record from a
recognized University/Institution. He should have adequate experience at
senior level in large organization of good repute. Preferably in the field of
Operations, Mtce., Planning and Development of large Telecom Network.
Shri V.Ramesh, the present Director (Technical) is having the requisite
qualification and experience.Further w.e.f. 01.04.2022 he was entrusted with
additional charge of Director (Technical) apart from his Regular Charge of
Dir(Technical) of BSNL.Additional charge of Director (Technical) BBNL is
also entrusted with him.

Presently i.e. as on 31.03.2023, MTNL has four Functional Directors, five Independent Directos
and two Government Nominee Directors on its Board. The Govt. Nominee Directors hold
requisite qualification and joined Central Govt. Services through UPSC.

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE

A qualified and independent Audit Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance
with the requirements of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.
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(I) TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the areas mentioned in Section 177 of
the Act and Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter-alia is as follows:

1.

10.
11.
12.
13.

Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial
information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

Reviewing with Management the Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements alongwith
related party transactions, if any, before submission to the Board.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties.

Reviewing with the Management and Statutory and Internal Auditors, the adequacy of
internal control systems.

Discussion with Internal Auditors on Annual Internal Audit Program, Significant Audit
Findings and follow up on such issues.

Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences on the nature and scope
of audit, as well as having post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management policies. - Evaluation of
internal financial controls and risk management systems.

Reviewing with the Management, the observations / comments / assurances of Statutory
Auditors and the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CAG).

Review with the Management, the follow-up action taken on the recommendations of
the Parliamentary Committee on Public Undertaking (CoPU), if any.

Review of Cost Audit Report.
To examine, decide and deal with all issues relating to Ethics in the Company.
Review of functioning of Whistle Blower Policy.

Carrying out any other function as may be referred to the Committee by the Board.

(ITI) COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
As on 31.07.2023, the Audit Committee consists of the following Members: -

1. |Shri Vishwas Pathak, Independent Director Chairman
2. | Shri Sarv Daman Bharat, Independent Director Member
3. | Shri Shivendu Gupta, Government Nominee Director Member
4. |Ms. Deepika Mahajan, Independent Director Member

As on 31.03.2023, the Audit Committee consists of the following Members: -

1. | Shri Vishwas Pathak, Independent Director Chairman
2. | Shri Sarv Daman Bharat, Independent Director Member
3. | Shri Shivendu Gupta, Government Nominee Director Member
4. |Ms. Deepika Mahajan, Independent Director Member
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The Members of the Audit Committee have requisite financial and management expertise. All
the recommendations of the Audit Committee made in the Financial Year 2022-23 have been
accepted by the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee meetings are usually attended by
Director (Finance), CFO & GM (Finance), MTNL CO and G.M.s(Finance) Delhi & Mumbai
and officers of Accounts Section. The Statutory Auditors & Internal Auditors also attend the
Audit Committee meetings by invitation. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to
the Committee.

(IIT) ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS DURING
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23.

The Audit Committee held 05 meetings during the Financial Year 2022-23 and the gap
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.

NO. OF AUDIT
Ngll\;[{%g,}j CF)FII{{ E COMMITTEE PERCENTAGE (%) REMARKS
MEETINGS ATTENDED

Shri Amitabh Ranjan Ceased to be Member

Sinha, Government NA NA w.e.f. 30.05.2022

Nominee Director

Shri Vishwas Pathak, o

Independent Director 5/5 100%

Shri Sarv Daman Bharat, o

Independent Director 3/5 100%

Shri Premjit Lal, Became Member

Government Nominee 22 100% w.e.f. 30.05.2022 and

Director 0 Ceased to be Member
w.e.f. 17.11.2022

Ms. Deepika Mahajan, 202 100% Became Member

Independent Director ’ w.e.f. 28.12.2022

Shri Sunil Kumar Became Member

Verma, Government NA NA w.e.f. 28.12.2022 and

Nominee Director Ceased to be Member
w.e.f. 05.01.2023

Shri Shivendu Gupta, Became Member

Government Nominee 1/1 100% w.e.f. 14.02.2023

Director

(Iv) DETAILS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 2022-23 (01/04/2022 TO 31/03/2023)

SI. No. Meeting No. Date Place No. of Members Attended
1 132 30.05.2022 New Delhi 2/2
2 133 12.08.2022 New Delhi 2/3
3 134 14.11.2022 New Delhi 3/3
4. 135 12.01.2023 Mumbai 2/3
5. 136 14.02.2023 New Delhi 4/4
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4. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been constituted by the Board in
compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations.

(I) Terms of Reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee

MTNL being a Government Company, the appointment and the terms and conditions of
appointment (including remuneration) of the Whole-Time Directors are decided by the
Government of India. However, the Board has constituted a Nomination & Remuneration
Committee. The Government Nominee Directors do not get any remuneration from the
Company. The Independent Directors are being paid sitting fee of Rs. 10,000/ for attending
each meeting of the Board or Committee thereof. They are reimbursed travel expenses &
hotel expenses on this account, if any in addition to the sitting fees. The Company does not
have any Employee Stock Option Scheme.

The Performance Evaluation of the Directors (including Independent Directors) has not
been done by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as MTNL being a Government
Company, the powers relating to the appointment, evaluation and the terms of Directors
including Independent Directors vest with Government of India. The same is also exempted
to Government Companies under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

(I) COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As on 31.07.2023, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of the following

Members: -
1. | Ms. Deepika Mahajan, Independent Director Chairperson
2. | Shri Sarv Daman Bharat, Independent Director Member
3. | Shri Sunil Kumar Verma, Government Nominee Director Member
As on 31.03.2023, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of the following
Members: -
1. | Ms. Deepika Mahajan, Chairperson | Became Chairperson & Member w.e.f.
Independent Director 23.11.2021
2. | Shri Amitabh Ranjan Sinha, Member Became Member w.e.f. 01.09.2021 and
Government Nominee Director Ceased to be Member w.e.f. 30.05.2022
3. | Shri Premjit Lal, Government Member Became Member w.e.f. 30.05.2022 and
Nominee Director Ceased to be Member w.e.f. 17.11.2022
4. | Shri Sarv Daman Bharat, Member Became Member w.e.f. 12.11.2021
Independent Director
5. | Shri Sunil Kumar Verma, Member Became Member w.e.f. 28.12.2022
Government Nominee Director

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

(III) ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT THE NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

One meeting of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was held during the Financial
Year 2022-23 which was attended by all the members of the Committee.
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Sl. No. Date Place No. of Members Attended
1 14.02.2023 New Delhi 3/3
NO. OF NOMINATION &
NAME OF THE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION COMMITTEE PERCENTAGE (%)
MEETING ATTENDED
Ms. Deepika Mahajan,
Chairperson & Independent 171 100%
Director
Shri Sarv Daman Bharat, o
Independent Director 171 100%
Shri Sunil Kumar Verma, o
Government Nominee Director 11 100%

(IV)THE DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO THE WHOLE- TIME DIRECTORS
DURING FY 2022 -23 ARE GIVEN BELOW:

NAME OF THE
WHOLE TIME
DIRECTORS

ALL ELEMENTS OF
REMUNERATION
PACKAGE LE., SALARY,
PF CONTRIBUTION,
PENSION, GRATUITY ETC

PERFORMANCE
LINKED
INCENTIVES*

TOTAL
AMOUNT
IN
RUPEES

OTHER
BENEFITS
(PERQUISITES)

Shri Pravin Kumar
Purwar, CMD

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

Shri Arvind
Vadnerkar,
Director (HR & EB)

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

Ms Yojana Das,
Director (Finance)
(Ceased to be
Director w.e.f.
30.11.2022

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

Shri V. Ramesh,
Director (Technical)
(Appointed
Director w.e.f.
01.04.2022)

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

Shri Rajiv Kumar,
Director (Finance)
(Appointed
Director w.e.f.
02.12.2022)

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

* relating to FY 2022-23

The Company also reimburses out-of-pocket expenses (travel expenses, hotel expenses etc.)
incurred by the Independent Directors for attending Board and its Committee meetings.

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders” Relationship Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance
with the requirements of Section 178 (5) of the Act and Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR)

Regulations.
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() Terms of Reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) covers the areas
mentioned in Section 178 (5) of the Act and Regulation 20 read with Part D (B) of Schedule II
to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The terms of reference of the SRC, inter-alia are as follows:

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints
related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of new/ duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholder.

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adapted by the listed entity in respect of
various services being rendered by the Registered & Share Transfer Agent.

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports notices by the shareholders of the company.”

The Committee also oversees the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA)
and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of Investors’ service.

Letters of Shareholders received through SEBI (SCORES)/Stock Exchange/MCA/Depositories/
RTA/Other Statutory Authorities are considered as complaints. The day-to-day requests
received from shareholders are taken up by M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd,
the RTA of the Company directly and are not included in the complaints. During the F.Y. 2022-
23, 2 complaints were received from the Shareholders directly or through SEBI (SCORES)/Stock
Exchange/MCA, etc. and all the 2 complaints have been resolved. The Shareholder's related
matters/issues are given top priority and are resolved within a reasonable period. The investors
may submit their request/ grievances through e-mail to the RTA and the Company. The Company
Secretary is designated as the “Compliance Officer” who oversees the redressal of the Investor’s
grievances. Contact information of the designated officials of MTNL who are responsible for
assisting & handling Investor Grievances of MTNL and email address for Investor/Shareholder
Grievances Redressal & relevant details are uploaded in Company’s website and can be accessed
at https://mtnl.in/investors.html.

(IT) Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
As on 31.07.2023, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of the following Members: -

1 Shri Sunil Kumar Verma, Government Chairperson Became Chairperson
" | Nominee Director P w.e.f. 28.12.2022

5 Shri Sarv Daman Bharat, Independent Member Became Member w.e.f.
| Director embe 28.12.2022

3. | Shri Rajiv Kumar, Director (Finance) Member Became Member w.e.f.
' : ’ 28.12.2022
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As on 31.03.2023, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of the following members: -

Became Chairman & Member
1 Shri Amitabh Ranjan Sinha, Government Chairman w.e.f. 01.09.2021 and Ceased
" | Nominee Director ! to Chairman & Member w.e.f.
30.05.2022
Became Member w.e.f. 01.09.2021
2. | Ms. Yojana Das, Director (Finance) Member & Ceased to be Member w.e.f.
30.11.2022
. Became Member w.e.f. 12.11.2021
3. ]S:)}.I:;;io‘f%h Kumar Tamrakar, Independent Member & Ceased to be Member w.e.f.
rrecto 28.12.2022
Ms. Yashashri Shukla, Government Nominee Became Chairperson w.e.f
4. Diréctor ! Chairperson | 30.05.2022 & Ceased to be
Chairperson w.e.f. 26.12.2022
5 Shri Sunil Kumar Verma, Government Chairperson Became Chairperson w.e.f.
~ | Nominee Director PETson 1 28.12.2022
Shri Sarv Daman Bharat, Independent Became Member w.e.f. 28.12.2022
6. . Member
Director
7. | Shri Rajiv Kumar, Director (Finance) Member Became Member w.e.f. 28.12.2022

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

(I) Attendance of Directors at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings during
the Financial Year 2022-23

One meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held during the Financial Year
2022-23 which was attended by all the members of the Committee.

SI. No. Date Place No. of Members Attended
1 14.02.2023 New Delhi 3/3
NO. OF STAKEHOLDERS
NAME OF THE DIRECTOR RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE | PERCENTAGE (%)
ATTENDED

Shri Sunil Kumar Yerma,. Chairperson & 11 100%
Government Nominee Director
S}}rl Sarv Daman Bharat, Independent 11 100%
Director
Shri Rajiv Kumar, Director (Finance) 1/1 100%

(IV) Details of Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings held during the Financial
Year 2022-23 (01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023)

One meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on 14.02.2023 during the
Financial Year 2022-23.

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (“CSR”) COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the Board in
compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Act.
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(1) Terms of Reference CSR Committee

1. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Act;

2. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred as above;
3. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

4. Such other activities as the Board of Directors determine as they may deem fit in line with
CSR Policy.

Since MTNL is incurring losses for the last four years, and last 3 year’s average is not showing
profits, no fund has been earmarked for the CSR activities. However, MTNL is doing non-
functioning CSR activities through SMS, etc. spreading awareness of the steps to be taken for
Prevention of COVID 19, Swachh Bharat, Pulse Polio etc.

(IT) Composition of CSR Committee

As on 31.07.2023, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee consists of the following
members: -

1. | Shri Arvind Vadnerkar, Director (HR & EB) Chairman
2. | Ms. Deepika Mahajan, Independent Director Member
3. | Shri Vishwas Pathak, Independent Director Member
4. | Shri Rajiv Kumar , Director (Finance) Member

As on 31.03.2023, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee consists of the following
members: -

. . . . Became Chairman
1. | Shri Arvind Vadnerkar, Director (HR & EB) Chairman wef 12.11.2021
. . . Ceased to be Member
2. | Ms. Yojana Das, Director (Finance) Member wef 30.11.2022
3 Ms. Deepika Mahajan, Independent Director Member Became Member w.e {.
. s. Deepi jan, Independe irecto embe 93.11.2021
— . Became Member w.e.f.
4. | Shri Vishwas Pathak, Independent Director Member
12.11.2021
R . . Became Member w.e.f.
6. | Shri Rajiv Kumar , Director (Finance) Member 98.12.2022.

The Board has adopted the CSR Policy as formulated and recommended by the Committee. The
CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at the web link: https://mtnl.in/csr_2014.
pdf.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee

No Meeting of the CSR Committee was held during the Financial Year 2022-23.




(€0 37" Annual Report 2022-23

7. ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(I) Terms of Reference of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee of the Company is constituted in line with
the provisions of Regulation 21 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The Enterprise Risk
Management Committee of the Board of Directors has been entrusted with the responsibility
to assist the Board in overseeing and approving the Company’s risk management framework.
The Company has a comprehensive Risk Policy detailing the risks that the Company faces
under various categories like Market/Competition Risk, Policy and Regulation Risk and
Regulatory Compliance Risk, Technology Risk/Quality of Service Risk, Operational Risk,
Ongoing Concern Risk, Internal Control Failures and Integrity Of Financial Information
Risk, Information Technology & Systems Security Risk, Disaster Management and Business
Continuity Risk, Greater Transparency and Entity Level Ethical & Governance Risk and
other risks and these have been identified and suitable mitigation measures have also been
formulated. The functions of the Enterprises Risk Management Committee shall inter-alia
includes cyber security. The Enterprises Risk Management Committee reviews the key risks
faced by the Company and its mitigation measures periodically.

The ERM Policy of the Company is included in Management Discussions and Analysis
(MD&A) Report which is included as Annexure to the Director’'s Report.

The Role of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee is as below:

i. Assessing the Risk Management Procedures relating to Identification and Evaluation
of all types of risks, namely, Strategic, Operational, Legal and Regulatory, Information
systems and external risks that the Company / Group is exposed to;

ii. Review and oversee The Risk Management, Compliance, and Control Procedures;
iii. Review the Risk Assessment and Mitigation Procedures;

iv. Recommend to the Board a Risk Management Plan for the Company and monitor the
functioning of the said plan;

v. Determine and finalize the risks that the Company and that of its Subsidiaries is exposed
to and review their mitigation measures;

vi. Review the Legal Compliance System;
vii. Such other terms as the Board may indicate from time to time.
(IT) Composition of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

As on 31.07.2023, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee consists of the following

Members: -
1. | Shri Rajiv Kumar Director (Finance) Chairman
2. | Shri V. Ramesh , Director (Technical) Member
3. | Shri Vishwas Pathak, Independent Director Member
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As on 31.03.2023, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee consists of the following
Members: -

R . . . Became Chairman w.e.f.
1. Shri Rajiv Kumar Director (Finance) Chairman 28.12.2022
. . . . Ceased to be Chairperson &

2. Ms. Yojana Das, Director (Finance) Chairperson Member w.e.f. 30.11.2022
3 Shri Yogesh Kumar Tamrakar, Indepen- Member Ceased to be Member w.e.f

’ dent Director 28.12.2022.
4 Shri V. Ramesh , Director (Technical) Member Became Member w.ef.

’ ’ ! 01.04.2022 .
5 Shri Vishwas Pathak, Independent Direc- Member Became Member w.e. f.

! tor embe 28.12.2022.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT THE ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE MEETINGS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23.

Two meeting of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee was held during the Financial
Year 2022-23 which was attended by all the members of the Committee.

SI. No. Date Place No. of Members Attended

1 12.08.2022 New Delhi 2/3

2. 14.02.2023 New Delhi 3/3

NO. OF ENTERPRISE
NAME OF THE DIRECTOR RISK MANAGEMENT PERCENTAGE (%)
COMMITTEE ATTENDED

Ms. Yojana Das, Director (Finance) 1/1 100%
S}.m Yogesh Kumar Tamrakar, Independent NIL NIL
Director
Shn Rajiv Kumar, Chairman & Director 11 100%
(Finance)
Shri V. Ramesh , Director (Technical) 2/2 100%
Shri Vishwas Pathak, Independent Director 1/1 100%

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE (STC) & SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

(i) The Company has constituted STC consisting of 2 Senior Management level officers who
look after the Share Transfer/Transmission/Transposition/Remat/Demat/ Consolidation/
Splitting of share earned. The Committee reviews all such cases fortnightly.

(if) Shares sent for transfer in Physical form are registered and returned by our Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent in 15 days of receipt of the documents, provided the documents
are found to be in order. Shares under objection are returned within 2 weeks.

(iii) All the requests for transfer of shares have been processed on time and there are no
transfers pending for more than 15 days.
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COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Name of the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer: Shri Ratan Mani Sumit

Address: Mahanagar Doorsanchar Sadan, 5th Floor, 9 CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New
Delhi-110003.Tel No. 011- 24317225 E-mail:mtnlcsco@gmail.com, mtnlcsco@bol.net.in

10. (i) LOCATION, DATE AND TIME FOR LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NﬁggﬁENgF DATE AND TIME VENUE SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE LAST 3YRS AGM
36™ ANNUAL 10" October, 2022, |Meeting Held |1. To raise the Borrowing Powers of the Board from Rs.30, 000
GENERAL 11:30 A.M. Through VC/ crores to Rs. 35, 000 crores.

MEETING (2022) OAVM 2. To approve the Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on
Private Placement Basis
3. To approve Alteration in the Article 69(11)(f) and insertion in
para no. 24 of the Article 72 of the Articles of Association of
MTNL.
35™ ANNUAL 25t November, Meeting Held |1. To approve Alteration in Article 69(ii)(f) and Article 72 of
GENERAL 2021, 11:30 A.M. Through VC/ Articles of Association of MTNL
MEETING (2021) OAVM 2. To raise the Borrowing Powers of Board from Rs. 25000 crore
to Rs. 30000 crore
3. To approve the issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on
Private Placement basis
4.  Appointment of Shri Vishwas Pathak (DIN - 00093771), Non
Official Independent Director of the Company
5. Appointment of Shri Sarv Daman Bharat (DIN - 09393017),
Non Official Independent Director of the Company
6. Appointment of Smt. Deepika Mahajan (DIN - 09408802),
Non Official Independent Director of the Company
7. Appointment of Shri Yogesh Kumar Tamrakar (DIN -
00070734), Non Official Independent Director of the Company
34™ ANNUAL 31 December, Meeting Held | No Special Resolution was passed
GENERAL 2020, 11:30 A.M. Through VC/
MEETING (2020) OAVM

(ii) Postal Ballot Passed by Shareholders through E-voting during FY 2022-23:

(a) During the year under review, ordinary/special resolutions for appointment of following
Directors were passed by Shareholders by requisite majority by way of Postal Ballot
through notice dated 17.05.2022 & 20.05.2022, 18.07.2022 and 16.01.2023 respectively

through E-voting process:

SI. No. Description of the Resolution Resolution
1 Appointment of Shri V. Ramesh (DIN: 08771524), as Director (Technical) of Ordinary
the Company
5 Appointment of Shri Piyush Ranjan Nishad (DIN: 09579746), as Non-Official Special
) Independent Director of the Company P
3 Appointment of Shri Premjit Lal, (DIN: 07049152), DDG(PM), DOT as Ordinar
) Government Nominee Director of the Company Y
4 Appointment of Ms. Yashashri Shukla, (DIN:09526509), JT. Admin/USOF, Ordinar
) DOT as Government Nominee Director of the Company Y
5 Appointment of Shri Sunil Kumar Verma, (DIN: 09800644), Joint Secretary Ordinar
) (A),DOT as Government Nominee Director of the Company Y
Appointment of Shri Rajiv Kumar (DIN-09811051), Director Finance, BSNL .
6. . . Ordinary
as Director (Finance) of the Company
Appointment of Shri Shivendu Gupta, (DIN: 09850201), DDG(WPF),DOT as .
7. . . Ordinary
Government Nominee Director of the Company

.........................................




37" Annual Report 202223 (22D

11.

(b) The Board of Directors of your Company appointed CS Hemant Kumar Singh, Prop. of
M/s Hemant Singh & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Delhi (C.P. No. 6370
and FCS 6033), as Scrutinizer for conducting the abovementioned Postal Ballot and
E-voting process.

(c) Dispatch of the Postal Ballot Notice dated 17.05.2022 & 20.05.2022, 18.07.2022 and
16.01.2023 respectively along with explanatory statement was made to all the eligible
Shareholders of the Company.

(d) E-voting period in respect of Postal Ballot Notice dated 17.05.2022, 18.07.2022 and
16.01.2023 respectively is given below:- (i) Friday, 27th May, 2022 (9.00 AM) and ends
on Saturday, 25th June, 2022 (5.00 PM).(ii) Friday, 29th July, 2022 (9.00 AM) and ends
on Saturday, 27th August, 2022 (5.00 PM) and (iii) Saturday, 21st January, 2023 (9.00
AM) and ends on Sunday, 19th February, 2023 (5.00 PM)

(iii) Whether any Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot — At
present, there is no proposal to pass any Special Resolution through Postal Ballot. None
of the business proposed to be transacted in the ensuring Annual General Meeting
require passing a special resolution through Postal Ballot.

(iv) Procedure for Postal Ballot — Not Applicable
DISCLOSURES

(I) CEO/CFO Certification - CMD & CFO of the Company have given the CEO/CFO
Certification to the Board for the Financial Year 2022-23. The Certificate is attached as
Annexure to this report.

(I) Pursuant to Part C (2) (i) of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) 2015, the Board of Directors of
MTNL is in the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfilled the conditions specified
in these regulations and are independent of the Management.

(III) Pursuant to Part C (10) (i) of SEBI (LODR), 2015, M/s Mritunjay Shekhar & Associates,
Company Secretary in Practice has furnished a Certificate that None of the Directors in
the Board of MTNL has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continue
as Directors of Company by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any
other Statutory Authority for the FY 2022-23. The Certificate is attached as Annexure
to this report.

(IV) Pursuant to Schedule V Part C (10) (k) of SEBI (LODR), 2015, during the last two
financial years i.e. 2021-22 & 2022-23 there has been no instance of Non-Compliance by
the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges
or the SEBI or any statutory authorities, on any matter related to capital markets.
For further information, kindly refer Annual Secretarial Compliance Certificate and
Corporate Governance Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 attached as an Annexure
to the Directors Report.

(V) All mandatory requirement of the DPE Guidelines in Corporate Governance for CPSEs
and SEBI (LODR), 2015 have been duly complied by the Company. A Certificate of
Compliance with Corporate Governance under SEBI (LODR), 2015 has been obtained
from M/s Mritunjay Shekhar & Associates for the Financial Year 2022-23, and placed as
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annexure to the Directors Report.

(VI) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFDCMD1/27/2019 dtd. 08/02/2019 an Annual
Secretarial Compliance Certificate for the Financial Year 2022-23 has been obtained
from M/s Mritunjay Shekhar & Associates Practising Company Secretaries and has
been filed in BSE & NSE on 10.05.2023, and placed as annexure to the Directors Report.

(VII) Policy on Related Party Transactions: The Policy on Related Party Transactions has
been approved by the Board and the same may be accessed on the Company’s Website
at the link: http://mtnl.in/Policy_relpartytransac.pdf

(VII[)Whistle Blower Policy: The Policy on Whistle Blower may be accessed on the
Company’s Website at the link: http://mtnl.in/whistleBlowerPolicy.pdf . The Company
promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism
for reporting illegal or unethical behavior as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulation, 2015. The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy under which
the employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and regulations and the
Code of Conduct. Employees may also report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
During the year under report, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee
and no whistle blower complaint was received during the FY 2022-23.

(IX) Policy on Material Subsidiary: The Policy on Material Subsidiary has been approved by
the Board and the same may be accessed on the Company’s Website at the link: http://
mtnl.in/policy_materialsubsidy.pdf The Audit Committee reviews the consolidated
financial statements of the company. The minutes of the Board Meetings along with
the report on significant developments of the unlisted subsidiary companies are placed
before the Board of Directors of the Company regularly. The Company does not have
any material non-listed Indian Subsidiary Company.

(X) Policy for Determining Materiality of an Event or Information: The Policy for
determining Materiality of an event or information as defined under Regulation 30 of
SEBI (LODR), 2015 has been approved by the Board and the same may be accessed on
the Company’s Website at the link: http://mtnl.in/PolicyfordeterminingMateriality.pdf.

(XI) Dividend Distribution Policy: The Policy as prescribed under Regulation 43A of SEBI
(LODR) Regulation 2015 has been approved by the Board and the same may be accessed
on the Company’s Website at the link: https://mtnlin/mddp.pdf

(XII)  Preservation of Documents Required to be Maintained under SEBI (LODR), Regulation
2015 & Archival Policy of information hosted on the Website of MTNL: This Policy
as prescribed under Regulation 9 of SEBI(LODR) Regulation 2015 & Archival Policy
of information hosted on the Website of MTNL as prescribed under Regulation 30 of
SEBI(LODR), 2015 has been approved by the Board and the same may be accessed on
the Company’s website at the link: http://mtnl.in/Preservation.pdf .

(XIII) The Policy for “Internal Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in dealing
with Securities of MTNL” covering code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure
of unpublished price sensitive information and code of conduct for the prevention of
insider trading has been approved by the Board and the same may be accessed on
the Company’s Website at the link: https://mtnl.in/internalcodeofconduct.pdf All the
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Directors, employees and third parties such as Auditors, Consultants etc. who could
have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the company are governed
by this Code. The trading window is closed from the beginning of the Quarter till 48
hours after declaration of Financial Results and Notice of Closure of Trading Window is
uploaded in MTNL’s website https://mtnl.in/meeting.html and NSE and BSE websites
on Quarterly Basis.

(XIV) Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report for the FY 2022-23: In order to
comply with Regulation 34 (2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 & SEBI/LAD-NRO/
GN/2021/22 dated May 05, 2021, a Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report
(BRSR) of MTNL describing the initiatives taken by MTNL on ESG (Environmental,
Social and Governance) parameters has been prepared and placed as Annexure to
Directors Report.

(XV)  Share Capital Audit: M/s Hemant Singh & Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries
has carried out a Share Capital Audit in Quarterly basis in FY 2022-23 to reconcile
the total admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository(India)
Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services Limited (“CDSL”) and the total
issued and listed equity share capital. The said report is also filed in NSE and BSE on
Quarterly Basis.

(XVI) Code of Conduct for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel: The Board of Directors of MTNL has approved the Code of Conduct for
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel as per
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Code lays down in
detail the standard of business conduct, ethics governance and centers on the following
theme: “Integrity and transparency are the core value in all our business dealings.
We shall act in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, in a manner that
excludes considerations of personal advantage and will not compromise in our
commitment to honesty and integrity in any aspect of our business. We are committed
to excellence, in all our endeavors". The Code may be accessed in the Company’s
website http://mtnl.in/codeofconduct.pdf.

(XVII) Certificate by the CMD regarding Affirmation of Compliance of Code of Conduct
for Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management
Personnel for the F.Y. 2022-23. The CMD has issued a Certificate of Compliance of
the above code by all as under: -

Pursuant to Regulation 26 (3) and Schedule V (D) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, I confirm
that Board Members, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of MTNL
have affirmed compliance with the "MTNL's Code of Conduct" for Board Members, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel for the Financial Year 2022-23".

(P.K.PURWAR)
Chairman & Managing Director

PLACE: New Delhi
DATE: 05.07.2023
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(XVIII) Means of Communication: -

a) The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Financial Results were published in English and
Hindi Newspapers on the SEBI prescribed format and are also posted on the Company’s
website i.e. https://mtnl.in/finres.html.

b) Annual Report: The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, Audited Financial Statements,
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, Director’s Report, Auditor's Report, Business
Responsibility & Sustainability Report, Management Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) Report
and other important information is circulated to members through email and others entitled
thereto & is also displayed on the Company’s website www.mtnl.net.in and http://mtnl.in/
annual.html in accordance with MCA Circulars.

¢) NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS): NEAPS is a web based application
designed by National Stock Exchange (NSE) for Corporates. All periodical compliance
filings like Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, media releases, etc. are
filed electronically on NEAPS in order to comply with Regulation 10 of SEBI (LODR), 2015
and the general public may view the same.

d) BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the “Listing Centre”): The BSE’s Listing
Centre is the Web based application designed for Corporates. All periodical compliance
filings like Shareholding pattern, Corporate Governance Report, media releases, etc. are
filed electronically on BSE Listing Centre in order to comply with Regulation 10 of SEBI
(LODR), Regulation 2015 and the general public may view the same.

e) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a
centralized web based complaints redressal system. The salient features of this system are
Centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the
concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and
its current status.

f) All filing in the Stock Exchanges are also simultaneously uploaded on the website of MTNL
i.e. www.mtnlnet.in.

(XIX) General Shareholder Information:

(1) Company Registration Details- The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies,
NCT of Delhi & Haryana on 28.02.1986. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to
the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L32101DL1986GOI023501.

(2) Date and Time of AGM - Friday, September 29, 2023 at 11.30 A.M through Video
Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OVAM)

Meeting is being conducted through VC/OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circular dated May
5, 2020 read with general circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, January 13, 2021,
December 14, 2021, May 05, 2022 and December 28, 2022 as such there is no requirement to
have a venue for the AGM. For details, please refer to the Notice of this AGM.

Asrequired under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and Secretarial Standard
2 on General Meetings, particulars of Directors seeking re-appointment at this AGM are
given in the Annexure to the Notice of this AGM.
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(3) Venue - Through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OVAM)
(4) Financial year - 1** April 2022 to 31 March 2023

(5) Financial Calendar

Board meeting for considering Audited Annual Accounts for the
year ended on 31.03.2023

29* May, 2023

Submission of Audited Accounts to C&AG of India

6" June, 2023

Board Meeting for Unaudited Reviewed Quarterly Financial Results
for the Quarter ended on 30" June 2023

11" August,2023

Board Meeting for Unaudited Reviewed Quarterly Financial Results
for the Quarter ended on 30" September 2023

On or before 14™ November,
2023

Board Meeting for Unaudited Reviewed Quarterly Financial Results
for the quarter ended on 31 December 2023

On or before 14™ February,
2024

Board Meeting for Annual Financial Results and Unaudited

On or before 30" May, 2024

Quarterly Financial Results for the Quarter ended on 315*March 2024
(6) Dates of Book Closure - 23" September 2023 To 29™ September 2023
(7) Dividend Payment Date - N.A.

(8) Name and address of each Stock Exchange at which Company Shares are listed and Stock

code
BEGT 0 EeE < Names Address Stock code
Exchanges

Equity Shares Bombay Stock Exchange | 25" Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal 500108
Limited (BSE Ltd.) Street, Mumbai — 400001
The National Stock Exchange Plaza, Plot no C/1, G MTNL
Exchange of India — Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Limited, (NSE Ltd.) Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

The Bond issued by MTNL are listed in BSE. Details of Bonds issued by MTNL as on
31.03.2023 are given in the Directors Report.

Applications for delisting of MTNL’s shares from Delhi, Calcutta & Madras Stock Exchanges
have been filed with the above mentioned Stock Exchanges on 16™ October, 2012. The shares
of the company are delisted from Madras Stock Exchange w.e.f. 26.07.2013. Delhi Stock
Exchange has intimated MTNL vide its letter dtd. 18.04.2023 that after its de-recognition,
de-listing of shares of MTNL is not applicable.

No Confirmation of de-listing has been received from Calcutta Stock Exchange so far.
However, the Company has not been paying listing fees to Calcutta Stock Exchange from
the Financial Year 2013-14 onwards.

MTNL has de-listed its American Depository Receipts (ADR) from OTCQX International
Market, New York on 01.10.2022. The current outstanding is 3,132,138 ADRs as on 31.03.2023.

B I A A T T T P
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(9) Dematerialisation

Name

Address

ISIN

National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL)

Trade World, A wing, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills
Compound, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013

INE 153A01019

(India) Limited

Central Depository Services

17th floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal
Street, Mumbai- 400001

INE 153A01019

(10) Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of MTNL - L32101DL1986G0O1023501

(11) Payment of Listing Fees and Annual Custody Fee: Annual Listing Fees and Annual
Custody Fees for the Financial Year 2022-23 and 2023-24 has been paid by the Company to
BSE & NSE and NSDL & CDSL respectively.

(12) STOCK MARKET PRICE DATA: Information relating to high & low price during each
month in the Financial Year 2022-23 at BSE and NSE is given here under: -The Opening
Price on BSE as on 01/04/2022 was Rs.23.00 and NSE as on 01/04/2022 was Rs. 22.70. The
Closing Price on BSE as on 31/03/2023 was Rs. 18.09 and NSE as on 31/03/2023 was Rs. 18.05.

52 Week High and Low (for FY 2022-23) in NSE is Rs 30.30 ( on 16.12.2022) and Rs 16.60 (
on 28.03.2023) respectively.

52 Week High and Low (for FY 2022-23) in BSE is Rs 30.35 ( on 16.12.2022) and Rs 16.60 ( on
28.03.2023) respectively.

The Market Capitalization of MTNL as on 31.03.2023 is Rs 113715 lakhs (NSE) and the rank
of MTNL is 907 among all the listed companies in NSE.

The Market Capitalization of MTNL as on 31.03.2023 is Rs 1139.67 Crores (BSE) and the
rank of MTNL is 935 among all the listed companies in BSE.

BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE (BSE) | NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE (NSE)
MONTH Month’s High Month’s Low Month’s High Month’s Low
Price (Rs.) Price (Rs.) Price (Rs.) Price (Rs.)
April, 2022 30.50 22.65 30.50 22.55
May, 2022 25.70 20.05 25.70 20.05
June, 2022 22.65 16.70 22.65 16.65
July, 2022 28.40 18.30 28.45 18.70
August, 2022 26.55 22.75 26.60 22.70
September, 2022 25.75 20.60 25.85 20.50
October, 2022 23.55 20.15 23.70 20.55
November, 2022 25.40 20.55 25.45 20.70
December, 2022 30.35 21.70 30.30 21.75
January, 2023 28.20 22.55 28.20 22.50
February, 2023 24.35 19.25 24.40 19.25
March, 2023 21.44 16.60 21.45 16.60

.........................................
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(13) REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS OF EQUITY SHARES OF MTNL -

M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd, 3rd Floor, Beetal House, 99, Madangir,
Behind Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi - 110 062.
Ph: 011 29961281-82 Fax No.: 011- 29961284, e-mail- beetalrta@gmail.com. All Investor’s
Grievances have been promptly attended by the RTA.

(14) REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS OF DEBENTURES/ BONDS OF MTNL -

1.  M/sKarvy Fintech Pvt. Ltd., Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No.31 & 32, Financial District
Gachibowli, Hyderabad-500032 Contact Person: Mr. Umesh Pandey, Contact No:
9849712635, 040-67162222; FAX NO: 040-23420814, E-MAIL: umesh.pandey@kfintech.
com (For Bonds Series INE153A08022, INE153A08030, INE153A08048, INE153A08055,
INE153A08063 and INE153A08071)

2. M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd, 3rd Floor, Beetal House, 99,
Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada HarsukhdasMandir, New Delhi
- 110 062. Ph: 011 29961281-82 Fax No.: 011- 29961284, e-mail- beetalrta@gmail.com.
(For Bonds Series INE153A08089, INE153A08097, INE153A08105, INE153A08113,
INE153A08121, INE153A08139 and INE153A08147)

(15) DEBENTURE TRUSTEE DETAILS -

1. SBICAPTrusteeCompany Limited, Mistry Bhavan,4thFloor, 122, Dinshaw Vachha Road
Churchgate, Mumbai-400020, Contact person —Mr. Jatin Bhat, Landline:022-43025503.E-
Mail: jatin.bhat@sbicaptrustee.com.

2. Beacon Trusteeship Limited, 4c & D Siddhivinayak Chambers, Gandhi Nagar, Opp
Mig Cricket Club, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 Contact person — Shri Kaustubh
Kulkarni, Landline: 022-26558759.E-Mail: compliance@beacontrustee.co.in

(16) SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM -As per the directives of Securities & Exchange Board of
India, the Equity Shares of your Company have been mandated for trading in dematerialized
form by all categories of investors since 1997. Share transfers in physical form are registered,
if documents are complete in all respects, and thereafter the share certificates are issued
within 15 days from the date of receipt of request for transfer of shares and returned to
the Shareholder’s by our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, shares under objection are
returned within 2 weeks. The Board has delegated the authority for approving transfer,
transmission, remat, split, consolidation etc. of the Company's shares to the Share Transfer
Committee comprising of DGM (Budget & Banking) and Company Secretary. A summary
of transfer/transmission of securities of the Company so approved by the Share Transfer
Committee is placed before the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board. The
Company has obtained the Certificate of Compliance of the formalities regarding Share
Transfer for the FY 2022-23 from M/s Mritunjay Shekhar & Associates., Company Secretaries
as required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and filed a copy of the
same certificate with the Stock Exchanges, on yearly basis.
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(17) INFORMATION ON SHAREHOLDING IN MTNL -
(i) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF MTNL AS ON 315" MARCH, 2023

Total number Total Total Shareholding
S. Category of Total No of of Shares number of as a % of Total
No. Shareholder Shareholders (Physical + Shares number of Shares
Demat) (Demat) (Physical + Demat)
1. | President of India 1 354378740 | 354378740 56.25
2. | Mutual Funds 11 4500 100 0.00
Financial
3. | Institutions/Banks 10 1001805 1000105 0.16
4 |LIC 1 82659957 82659457 13.12
5, | Other Insurance 2 2987514 2987514 0.47
Companies
6. | Bodies Corporate 702 6696519 6690519 1.06
7. |Individuals 181291 160338651 | 160238399 25.45
g. | Trusts 13 442980 442980 0.07
9, |HUF 3667 9495202 9495202 1.50
10. | Clearing Member 100 979906 979906 0.16
11, | Foreign Portfolio 5 2954255 2954255 0.47
Investors
12. | NRI 1251 1785595 1785595 0.28
Foreign Institutional
13. | Investor/ Foreign 7 6600 6000 0.00
Companies
Shares held by
Custodians and
14. | against which 1 6264276 6264276 0.99
Depository Receipts
have been issued
15. | Any other 2 3500 3500 0.00
GRAND TOTAL 187064 630000000 | 629886548 100
Particulars Total number of Shares Total Shareholding as a %
Domestic shareholding 618989274 98.25
Foreign shareholding 11010726 1.75
Total 630000000 100
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SHAREHOLDER HOLDING MORE THAN 5 % SHARES AS ON 31.03.2023

Name of Shareholder Total number of Shares Total Shareholding as a %
President of India 354378740 56.25
LIC 82659957 13.12
(ii) INFORMATION ON DISTRIBUTION OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDING AS ON 3157
MARCH, 2023: -

Hola T o | NO.OF % TO NO.OF | AMOUNT |%TO TOTAL
NOMINAL SHARE TOTAL SHARES IN * (FACE SHARE
VALUE OF ‘Rs. HOLDERS | HOLDERS VALUE) CAPITAL
UPTO 5000 148985 79.64 19122483 | 191224830.00 3.0353
5001 to 10000 17121 9.15 14515967 | 145159670.00 2.3041
10001 to 20000 9387 5.01 14676794 | 146767940.00 2.3296
20001 to 30000 3577 1.91 9317441 93174410.00 1.4790
30001 to 40000 1727 0.92 6266566 62665660.00 0.9947
40001 to 50000 1756 0.93 8420660 84206600.00 1.3366
50001 to 100000 2463 1.31 18778973 | 187789730.00 2.9808
100001 and above 2048 1.09 538901116| 5389011160.00 85.5399
TOTAL 187064 100.00 630000000 | 6300000000.00 100.00

Note: - Nominal Value of Each Share is Rs. 10/-.

(18) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity -As on 31st March 2023, 99.98% shares of
the Company's equity share capital available in the market is in dematerialized form.
The Company has entered into agreements with both the depositories of the country viz.
National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services Ltd. (CDSL),
and the shareholders have an option to dematerialize their shares with any of them.

Sl. No. | Shares in Demat and Physical form ( as on 31.03.2023) No. of Shares | % of Issued Capital
1. Held in Demat form in CDSL 84340570 13.39%
2. Held in Demat form in NSDL 545545978 86.59%
3. Physical Holding 113452 0.02%
4. Total No. of Shares 630000000 100%

(19) Transfer of unpaid/unclaimed amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
—As the Company has not declared any dividend (Final/Interim), for the last seven years,
Therefore, Provision of Transfer of Unpaid/Unclaimed amount to IEPF is not applicable.

(20) List of Credit Ratings obtained by MTNL along with any revisions thereto during F.Y.
2022-23 for all debt instruments —

CARE Ratings Limited has reaffirmed its 'CARE AAA (CE); Stable’ rating on the Rs 24923.97
crore non-convertible debentures of Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited (MTNL) vide
its letter dtd 03.11.2022. There has been no change in the rating given by CARE in last
three yearsi.e., 2020, 2021 and 2022. India Ratings & Research Private Limited had assigned
INDAAA (CE)/Stable on the Rs 10910 crore non-convertible debentures of Mahanagar
Telephone Nigam Limited (MTNL) vide its letter dtd 01.02.2022.

............................................................................................................
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(21) Beneficiary Account -In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule
V Part F of SEBI SEBI(LODR) Regulations, MTNL has opened a Beneficiary Account under
the name of “MTNL- Unclaimed Suspense Account” (DP ID-IN301330, Client ID-21234840)
for crediting unclaimed Demat shares of MTNL on November 1, 2012 as under:

Details of MTNL- Unclaimed Suspense Account :-

The Company does not have any shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed
suspense account.

Opening Balance (as on Requests received and disposed Closing Balance (as on
01.04.2022) of during FY 2022-2023 31.03.2023)
Cases Shares Cases Shares Cases Shares
0 0 0 0 0 0

(22) Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and
likely impact on equity -As on March 31, 2023, the Company does not have any outstanding
Warrants or any convertible instruments. As on March 31, 2023 current outstanding ADRs
still remains at 3,132,138.

(23) Commodity Price Credit Rating Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and hedging activities -
As MTNL is a Service Provider Company, Commodity Price Risk is not applicable.

(24) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institution placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) of SEBI (LODR) 2015 — During
the year under review, the Company did not raise any funds through preferential allotment
or qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) of the SEBI(LODR)
Regulations.

(25) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis, to the Statutory auditors and all entities in the network firm/network entity of
which the Statutory auditor is a part for the FY 2022-23, are given below: -

S.NO. Payment to Statutory Auditors Rs. (In Crore) FY 2022-23
1. |Statutory Auditor 0.73
2. | Other services including reimbursement 0.12
TOTAL 0.85

(26) Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention,
prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 -

S.No Ttem No. of Complaints received | No. of Complaints Pending at end of
) during FY 2022-23 the Financial Year i.e. as on 31.03.2023
1. |Sexual Harassment 1 0

(27) Plant Locations -The Company has active operations of services in two metro cities i.e.,
Delhi and NCR and Mumbai including Thane District only.

(28) Investors’ correspondence may be addressed to — Shri Ratan mani Sumit, Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer, Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited, Mahanagar
Doorsanchar Sadan, 5" Floor, 9, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003 Tel: 91+11-
24317225 Fax: 91+11-24315655, Website: www.mtnl.net.in / www.bol.net.in, E-mail Id:
mtnlcsco@bol.net.in , mtnlcsco@gmail.com.
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ANNEXURE TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

l}s 311B, Vikas Surya Galaxy,

Plot No. 09, Sector-4, Dwarka,
MRITUNJAY SHEKHAR & ASSOCIATES New Delhi 110078
Company Secretaries Website:https://www.msaonline.
Email — shekharmritunjay3@gmail.com info/FRN-S2018DE619000
MNo0.9540043975/8076567045 P R -2919/2023

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS FOR FY 2022-23

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited
Mahanagar Doorsanchar Sadan,

5th Floor, 9 CGO Complex Lodhi Road,

New Delhi-110 003

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of M/s Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited having CINL32101DL1986GO01023501
and having registered office at MAHANAGAR DOORSANCHAR SADAN, 5TH FLOOR, 9
CGO COMPLEX, LODHI ROAD, NEW DELHI DL 110003 IN (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending
on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

I\SIE) NAME OF DIRECTOR DIN DATE OFC%)I\IZ;DILT\%MENT N
1. | PRAVIN KUMAR PURWAR 06619060 15/04/2020
2. | ARVIND UMAKANT VADNERKAR 08597016 01/09/2021
3. |RAMESH VENUTURUMILLI 08771524 01/04/2022
4. |RAJIVKUMAR 09811051 02/12/2022
5. | SUNIL VERMA 09800644 23/11/2022
6. |SHIVENDU GUPTA 09850201 05/01/2023
7. | YOGESH KUMAR TAMRAKAR 00070734 12/11/2021
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ng NAME OF DIRECTOR DIN DATE OFCISDBESIL%I;{MENT IN
8. | VISHWAS VASANT PATHAK 00093771 12/11/2021
9. |SARV DAMAN BHARAT 09393017 12/11/2021
10. | DEEPIKA MAHAJAN 09408802 23/11/2021
11. | PIYUSH RANJAN NISHAD 09579746 21/04/2022

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Mritunjay Shekhar & Associates
Company Secretaries
Sd/-
(Mritunjay Chandra Shekhar)
ACS17250
COP 20871
UDIN NUMBER: A017250E000180512
Peer Review Certificate N0.:2919/202
Date: 24/04/2023
Place: New Delhi
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI
(LODR), 2015 FOR THE F.Y 2022-23.

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023

To,
The Board of Directors

Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited

A.

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to
the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the listed entity’s code
of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
listed entity’s pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee;
i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed
entity’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For and on behalf of MTNL

Sd/- Sd/-

(Sultan Ahmed) (P.K. Purwar)
CFO CMD

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.05.2023
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

I. DETAILS OF THE LISTED ENTITY
1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity: L32101DL1986G0O1023501

2. Name of the Listed Entity: Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited
3. Year of incorporation: 1986
4

Registered office address: Mahanagar Doorsanchar Sadan, 5th Floor, 9, CGO
Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

Corporate address: Mahanagar Doorsanchar Sadan, 5th Floor, 9, CGO Complex,
Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003.

o

6. E-mail: mtnlcsco@gmail.com

7. Telephone- 011-24317225

8. Website: www.mtnl.net.in/www.bol.net.in

9. Financial year for which reporting is being done: 2022-23

10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed: BSE & NSE
11. Paid-up Capital: Rs 630 Cr.

12. Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of the person who may be
contacted in case of any queries on the BRSR report: Ratan Mani Sumit (Company
Secretary Tel no. 011-24317225, Email ID mtnlcsco@gmail.com , mtnlcsco@bol.net.in )

13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report made on a standalone
basis (i.e. only for the entity) or on a consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and all the
entities which form a part of its consolidated financial statements, taken together).
Standalone Basis.

II. Products/Services

14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

S. NO. Description of Business Activity % of Turnover of the entity
1. Basic & Other Services 100%
(Landline, Broadband, FTTH, Cellular)

15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

NIC %OF TOTAL TURNOVER

S.NO. PRODUCT/SERVICE CODE CONTRIBUTED
1. Wireless Telecommunication Activities 612

Activities of Internet access by the operator of the wireless

infrastructure (61201)

Activities of maintaining and operating cellular and other

telecommunication networks (61202)

Wired Telecommunication Activities
2. Activities of basic telecom services: telephone, telex, and 611

telegraph (61101)
Activities of providing internet access by the operator of
the wired infrastructure (61104)
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III. Operations

16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total
National NA 3* 3
International NA NA NA

* Corporate Office, Delhi Unit and Mumbai Unit.

International telecom operations in 2 countries (Mauritius & Nepal) are served by Mahanagar
Telephone Mauritius Limited (MTML), a Wholly Owned Oversees Subsidiary of MTNL in
Mauritius and United Telecom Limited (UTL) Nepal a Joint Venture Company of MTNL

17. Markets served by the entity:

a. Number of locations

Locations Number
National (No. of States) 2%
International (No. of Countries) NA

* Delhi & Maharashtra (Mumbai)

b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity-
0.52%

c. A brief on types of customers:

MTNL offers services in categories of wireless and wire-line telecommunication to
the customers of MTNL The customers can use the various services such as Landline,
Broadband, FTTH, Enterprise services, Toll Free services, ISDN , mobile services leased
circuits, MPLS, EPABX .

IV. Employees
18. Details as at the end of Financial Year: 31.03.2023
a. Employees and Workers (including differently abled):

S. Male Female
Particulars Total (A)
No. No. (B) | % (B/A) |No. (C)| % (C/A)
EMPLOYEES
Permanent (D) 3567 2863 80.26 704 19.74
2. | Other than Permanent(E )
Total Employees (D + E) 3567 2863 80.26 704 19.74
WORKERS
4. Permanent (F) Not Applicable
5. | Other than Permanent (G )
6. | Total Employees (F + G) Not Applicable
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b. Differently abled Employees and Workers:

o Particulars Total (4) No. (B)l\/[|al‘;o (B/A) | No. (cF)eI|na:/: (C/A) |
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 3567 21 0.59 3 0.08
2. Other than Permanent (E) NOT APPLICABLE
3. Total Employees (D +E) 3567 21 0.59 3 0.08
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
4. Permanent (F)
5. Other than Permanent (G) Not Applicable
6. Total Employees (F + G)

19. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women

Total No. and percentage of Females
(A) No. (B) % (B/A)
Board of Directors 11 1 9.01
Key Management Personnel 2 0 0

20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers (Disclose trends for the past 3

years):
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Male Female Total | Male Female | Total Male Female Total
Permanent 21 4| 25 130 25 155| NA NA NA
Employees
Permanent NOT APPLICABLE
Workers

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

21. (a) Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

Indicate whether Does the entity indicated
S Name of the holding/ holding/ % of shares | at column A, participate
N. subsidiary / associate Subsidiary/ held by in the Business
° companies  /joint ventures (A) | Associate/ Joint |listed entity | Responsibilityinitiatives of
Venture the listed entity? (Yes/No)
1. |Millennium Telecom Ltd. (MTL) |Subsidiary 100 No
Mahanagar Telephone Mauritius | Subsidiary
2 | Limited (MTML) 100 No
MTNL STPIIT Services Ltd. Joint Venture
3. (MSITS) 50 No
United Telecommunications Ltd. | Joint Venture
4. (UTL), Nepal 26.68 No

.........................................
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22.

CSR Details
(i) Whether CSR is applicable as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: NO

(ii) Turnover (in Rs.) 1474.02 Cr.
(iii) Net worth (in Rs.) (20842.90 Cr.)

VIIL Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National
Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct:

Grievance Redressal
Mechanism in Place FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Stakeholder (Yes/No) (If Yes, then
group from provide web-link for Number of Number of Number of
whom complaint | grievance redress policy) complaints s complaints
is received Number of pending Remarks filed durin pending Remarks
complaints resolution at the vear 8| resolution at
filed during the year | close of the year y close of the year
Communities Not applicable
Investors Refer to point no.1
(other than https://mtnl.in/investors.html
Shareholders) 00 NA O0ONA
Shareholders Refer to 2 2 All the 2 0 NA
point no.1 Complaints
https:/mtnl. is resolved
in/investors.
html
Employees and |Refer
workers Principle No
3 Point no 6
Customers Refer Principle No 9 and Point No 2
;)/:rltu:eiham Not Applicable
:;t::;lf‘}(,flease Not Applicable

Point No. 1. MTNL has Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("SRC") to examine and redress
complaints by Shareholders/Bondholders. SRC meets as and when required and atleast once a
year to resolve Shareholders/Bondholders Grievances. SCORES Platform is also available for
Shareholders to raise any complaints. Shareholders can also register their complaints to BSE &

NSE.
Point No 2.

DETAILS OF CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS FOR THE PERIOD FROM APRIL 2022 TO MARCH
2023. (01.04.2022 - 31.03.2023)

S % OF PENDING CASES
NO. | PARTICULARS | TOTAL RECEIVED | TOTAL PENDING AT THE END OF
. FINANCIAL YEAR
MUMBAI | DELHI | MUMBAI | DELHI | MUMBAI DELHI
1. |P.G. Cases 930 2128 2 26 2.36 1.22
. |Landline Faults 368894 296012 21559 394 5.84 0.13
3. |Broadband 78554 33141 3233 52 411 0.16
Faults

..........................................
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24. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining
to environmental and social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business,
rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its financial
implications, as per the following format

Indicate
whether risk
or opportunity
(R/O)

Material
issue
identified

Rationale for
identifying
the risk/
opportunity

In case of
risk, approach
to adapt or
mitigate

Financial implications of
the risk oropportunity

(Indicate positive

ornegative implications)

NOT
IDENTIFIED

NA NA

NA

NA

SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

(Disclosure Questions

P1

P2

P3 |[P4| P5

P6 | P7 P8 P9

Policy and management processes

a. Whether your entity’s policy/
policies cover each principle and
its core elements of the NGRBCs.
(Yes/No)

Y

Y

Y Y

b. Has the policy been approved by
the Board? (Yes/No)

c. Web Link of the Policies, if available

Whether the entity has translated the
policy into procedures. (Yes / No)

Do the enlisted policies extend to your
value chain partners? (Yes/No)

Name of the national and international
codes/certifications/labels/ standards
(e.g. Forest Stewardship Council,
Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustea)
standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS,
ISO, BIS) adopted by your entity and
mapped to each principle.

Specific commitments, goals and
targets set by the entity with defined
timelines, if any

Performance of the entity against
the specific commitments, goals and
targets along-with reasons in case the
same are not met.

NA

Governance, leadership and oversight

......................
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Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related
challenges, targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility regarding the placement of this
7. | disclosure)

The Company is committed to develop a suitable ESG framework for the organization. The ESG
Policy covering targets, challenges etc., is presently under preparation.

Details of the highest authority
responsible for implementation and
oversight of the Business Responsibility
policy (ies).

Board of Directors

Does the entity have a specified
Committee of the Board / Director
9. |responsible for decision making on NO
sustainability related issues? (Yes /
No). If yes, provide details

10. | Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Subiect for Indicate whether review was undertaken Frequency
) by Director/ Committee of the Board/ Any | (Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/ Any
Review ) .

other Committee other — please specify)
P1 P2 \P3 P4 P> /P61 P7| P8 | P9 |P1|P2|P3|P4|P5|DP6|P7|P8| P9
Y |Y [Y |Y |Y |[Y |Y | Y Y

Performance

against above

policies and On Quarterly and Annual basis

follow up

action

Compliance |Y Y |Y |Y |Y |Y |Y Y Y
with
statutory
requirements
of relevance
to the On Quarterly and Annual basis
principles,
and,
rectification
of any non-
compliances
Has the entity carried out independent assessment/ | N [ N | N | N [ N | N N N| N
evaluation of the working of its policies by an
external agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide name of
the agency.

11.

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes
put in place towards adopting the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e., not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons
to be stated - Not applicable.
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SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the
Principles and Core Elements with key processes and decisions. The information sought is
categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the essential indicators are expected to be
disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be
voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be
socially, environmentally and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a
manner that is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during
the financial year:

%age of person
Total Number of Topics/ Principal are C d in respective
Segment Training and Awareness opies/ rincpal are L-overe category covered
Programmes held under the training and its impact by the awareness
8 y
programme
Board of Awareness Programmes are | Orientation =~ programmes  for | 100%
Director held as and when required | familiarization of Independent
directors with business and
operations of the Company,
industry structure, nature of
services offered.
The above trainings covered all the
Principles
Key - MTNL has taken Corporate |-
Managerial Membership of ICSI. ICSI organises
Personal Seminars on Various topics on
monthly basis for upgradation of
skills and knowledge.
Employee |1.Cyber Jagrookta Divas|1.Trainingsconductedoncompany |100%
otherthan |-3 (awareness program on | policies including; Cyber security
BoD and cyber security) and and its implementation in
KMPs 2.Workshop on RTI - 6|MTNL network.
(5(DU)+1(MU)) 2. Familiarization with RTI Act
3. IND AS training for|2005 and handling of RTI cases.
finance executives -2 3. Training on Indian accounting
4. Financial Up-gradation |standards conducted by M/s
of executives-56 | Walker Chandiok & Co.
(35(DU)+21(MU)) 4. Mandatory training for
executives upon upgradation
under MTNL TBFUP Policy.
Workers NA

2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount
paid in proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement
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agencies/ judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following format (Note: the entity
shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the
entity’s website):

Monetary
Name of the
Has an
regulatory/ appeal
NGRBC | enforcement | Amount (In : PP
ot . Brief of the Case been
Principle | agencies/ INR)
NSoene preferred?
judicial (Yes/No)
institutions
Penalty/ Fine | Principle |1. NSE %42,48,000/- | For the financial year ended | Yes
1 2. BSE on March 31, 2023, the

Company has  complied
with all requirements of
SEBI LODR Regulations, the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder, applicable
Secretarial Standards issued
by ICSI and DPE Guidelines
on Corporate Governance, as
amended from time to time,
except compliance related
to appointment of requisite
number of Independent
Directors. Due to such non-
compliances, NSE and BSE
have imposed a total fine of
%42,48,000/- including GST (%
6,28,000/- each including GST),
for all the four quarters of FY

2022-23.
Settlement - - - - -
Compounding | - - - - -
fee
Non-Monetary
NGRBC | Name of the | Brief of the Has an appeal been
Principle | regulatory/ Case preferred? (Yes/No)
enforcement
agencies/
judicial
institutions
Imprisonment | - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -

3. Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred
in cases where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.
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Name of the regulatory/ enforcement

Case Details agencies/ judicial institutions

In connection with fine levied by NSE and BSE for non- |1.
appointment of Independent Directors, as stated in the
previous question, since the power to appoint Directors on | 2.
the Board of the Company vests with the President of India,
acting through the Administrative Ministry i.e., Department
of Telecommunications (DoT), Government of India, therefore
the Company has been requesting the appointing authority,
i.e., DoT, for appointment of requisite number of Independent
Directors. The Company has no control in the appointment of
Directors. In view of the same, the Company had requested /
is requesting the stock exchanges to waive off the said fines.

National Stock Exchange of India
Limited
BSE

4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in
brief and if available, provide a web-link to the policy:

Yes. The ethical conduct of the Company is reflected in the various policy initiatives. While
the Employees Conduct, Discipline & Appeal Rules (CDA Rules) cover the employees at
all levels in the organization. In addition, to promote ethical business, Policies like Code of
Conduct, Integrity Pact, Whistle Blower Policy, Insider Trading Code and Citizen Charter
have also been put into operation. CVC Manual is being followed in MTNL Vigilance Unit

Additionally, the Company has a Vigilance Department headed by Chief Vigilance Officer
(CVO), who is a nominee of the Central Vigilance Commission. The Vigilance Department
submits its reports to Competent Authority including the Board of Directors. The CVO also
reports to the Central Vigilance Commission as per their norms.

5. Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was
taken by any law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

No Directors and KMPs were involved in bribery/corruption both in FY23 and FY22. On
above grounds, no action was taken by any law enforcement agency.

Ethics Complaints* received during the F.Y. 2022-23 Bribery & Corruption Complaints received during the F.Y. 2022-23
Total No. of No. of % of Total complaints No. of No. % of
complaints | Complaints | Complaints complaint | Received Complaints | Complaints | complaint
Resolved pending resolved Resolved pending resolved
81 69 12 85.1

*Note: As there is no category of complaint mentioned as ethics complaints as per CVC manual.
All complaints which are administrative in nature (Non-vigilance) are forwarded to concerned
wing for needful action. During F.Y 2022-23, 204 such complaint were sent.

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Number Remarks Number Remarks

Number of complaints received in relation

to issues of Conflict of Interest of the Di- NIL NA NIL NA
rectors

Number of complaints received in rela-

tion to issues of Conflict of Interest of the NIL NA NIL NA
KMPs
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No complaints were received with regard to conflict of interest against Directors & KMPs in FY
2022-23 and FY 2021-22 respectively.

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines /
penalties / action taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on
cases of corruption and conflicts of interest.

Not Applicable

PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable
and safe.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies
to improve the environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and
capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

Details of improvement in

FY 2022-23 FY2021-22 q o1 8
environmental and social impact

R&D - - -
Capex - - -

2. (a) Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)

Yes, MTNL is following all the guidelines given by the Govt. of India for procurement of Goods
& Services. MTNL integrates all Social, Ethical and Environmental performance factor into
the process of selection supplies/vendors. The Company promotes GeM portal (Government
e-Marketplace) in its procurements and also promotes sourcing from MSME vendors. All
procurement / sourcing of material and services is done as per the procedure defined in the
Procurement Policy of the Company.

(b) If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

S1. No. PROCUREMENT DURING FY 2022-23 (Rs. in Crores)
1. | Total Procurement during the year 63.6076
2. | Annual Procurement from Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) 50.2898
3. | Annual procurement from MSEs owned by SC/ST Entrepreneurs 0.3038
4. | Annual procurement from MSEs owned by Women Entrepreneurs 1.9800
5. | Annual Procurement from GeM 10.18
6. | Annual Procurement from MSEs on GeM 10.12

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling
and disposing at the end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c)
Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.

Disposal of old, unserviceable & obsolete IT equipment’s, identified as e-waste, in MTNL,
Scrapping for Computer items done in 2019 through MSTC. The life of Computer has been
fixed for seven years. Given the nature of business and operations, the Company does not
have material plastic waste and other waste. Further, the Company does not have any
hazardous waste.
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4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities
(Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps
taken to address the same.

Not Applicable

PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees,
including those in their value chains

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees

Category Total (A) Health insurance | Accident insurance | Maternity benefits Paternity benefits I?:Zilci:;e
Number(B) [/ (5/a) [ Number(C) | %(C/A) | Number(D) | %(D/A) | Number(E) | %(E/A)| Number(F) | %(E/A)
Permanent Employee
Male 2855 2855 100%
Female INCLUDED
N/A NA ASPER |IN HEALTH
723 723 100% RULES |[INSURANCE
Total 3578 3578 100%
Other than Permanent Employee
Male NA
Female NA
Total NA
b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers: NOT APPLICABLE
Category Total | Health insurance | Accident insurance | Maternity benefits | Paternity benefits | Day care facility
(A) | Number(B) | %(B/A) | Number(C) | %(C/A) | Number(D) | %(D/A) | Number(E) | %(E/A) | Number(F) | %(F/A)
Permanent Employee
Male NA
Female NA
Total NA
Other than Permanent Employee
Male NA
Female NA
Total NA

2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current FY and Previous Financial Year.

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
No. of No. of
. Employees No. of workers Deducted and . No. of workers Deducted and
Benefits ploy! Employees
covered as covered as a deposited with the covered as a covered as a %of deposited with
a %of as a %of as a % of authority (Y/N/ %of as a % of as a % of total the authority
% of total total workers N.A) to(;al em l; ce workers (Y/N/N.A.)
employee ploy
PF 63 NA NA
Gratuity 100% NA 100% NA
ESI NA NA NA NA NA NA
others
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3. Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and
workers, as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If
not, whether any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard.

Yes

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities Act, 20167? If so, provide a web-link to the policy.

MTNL complies with provisions of Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016 to protect
the interests of persons with disabilities. Reservation is provided as per Gol instructions
in direct recruitment for Persons with Benchmark Disabilities. Separate 100 point vacancy
based reservation roster register is maintained for determining/effecting reservation for the
Persons with Benchmark Disabilities. Relaxation in age limit and standards of suitability
(as applicable) is given to persons with disabilities. Liaison Officers for PwD have been
appointed to look after reservation matters and to ensure compliance of instructions of the
Act.

5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took
parental leave

Permanent Employee Permanent worker
Gender | Return to work rate Retention rate Return to work rate Retention rate
Male 100 100 NA NA
Female 100 100 NA NA
Total 100 100 NA NA

6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following
categories of employees and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes/No( if yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)

Permanent Employee MTNL has its own Grievance Redressal Procedure for employees.
Management of the Company believes in the philosophy of an
Open Door Policy in the matter of redressal of employee grievances.
An aggrieved employee can approach his/her Departmental Head
or the concerned officer of the Personnel Department (including
the Head of the Personnel Department) and discuss his/her
grievance. Best efforts are made to enable prompt actions on the
issues raised by the employee. The objective of the Grievance
Redressal Procedure is to provide an easily accessible machinery
for settlement of grievances, and to adopt measures as would
ensure expeditious settlement of grievances, leading to increased
satisfaction on the job and resulting in improved productivity and
efficiency of the organization.

Other than Permanent NA
Employee
Permanent Worker NA

Other than Permanent Worker | NA
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7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the
listed entity:

Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
No. of No. of
employee/ employee/
X Total .
Total Employee/| worker in worker in
Total worker in respective Employee/ respective
Permanent . P %(B/A) worker in P %(C/D)
respective category who . category who
Employee respective
category (A) are part of are part of
R category (C) .
association(s) association(s)
or Union (B) or Union (D)
Male 2863 1309 45.72% - - -
Female 704 360 51.13% - - -
Total 3567 1669 46.79% 3749 996 -
Permanent
Worker
Male - -
Female - -
8. Details of training given to employees and workers:
Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Total Permanent On Health and . . Total | On Health and On Skill
Employee Ut (£ safety measures Ol nigg ackiion (D) | safety measures | upgradation
No.(B) [%®B/A) [No.(C) [No.(C/A) No. (E) [% (E/D) |No. (F) [% (F/D)
Male 589 Nil Nil 589 100% 739 Nil Nil 589 80%
Female 150 Nil Nil 150 100 % Nil 150 20%
Total Permanent |739 Nil Nil 739 100 % Nil 739 100%
Worker
Other than Permanent Employee (Industrial Visits)
Male 1248 Nil Nil 1248 Nil 1808  [Nil Nil 1248 |69%
Female 560 Nil Nil 560 Nil Nil 560 31%
Total 1808 Nil Nil 1808 Nil Nil 1808 [100%

9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:
Refer to the Point No.8 of PRINCIPLE 3.
10. Health and safety management system:

a. Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented
by the entity? (Yes/ No). If yes, the coverage such system?

Considering the nature of business and operations, the occupational health and safety
issues are minimal. The Company takes care of health and well-being of its employees
by reimbursing in-patient and out-patient medical costs, provision for leaves on medical
grounds, which are applicable for all employees

b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine
and non-routine basis by the entity?

NA

c¢. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove
themselves from such risks. (Y/N)
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NA

d. Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and
healthcare services? (Yes/ No)

MTNL being an essential service provider of telecom services, MTNL has been scrupulously
following COVID prevention and management guidelines for all its stakeholders like social
distancing, wearing of masks, and frequent hand sanitization. Proper cleaning and frequent
sanitization of workplace particularly of frequent touched surfaces at regular intervals has
been ensured. Downloading and updating of Aarogya Setu app has been made mandatory.
Quarantine Leave has been provided for employees whose family members have been
infected with COVID. For employees and their family members requiring hospitalization
due to COVID, Group Health insurance coverage upto Rs.6 Lakhs is being provided under
Group Health Insurance Scheme.

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

Safety Incident/Number Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) Employee
(per one million-person hours worked) worker
Empl
Total recordable work- related injuries op oiee
—— NOT APPLICABLE
o Employee
No. of fatalities
worker
High consequence worked-related inju8ry Employee
or ill-health (excluding fatalities) worker

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

1.

In order to ensure a safe and healthy workplace, requisite security measures, installation
and maintenance of fire extinguishers and housekeeping measures have been taken in
MTNL.

MTNL being an essential service provider of telecom services, MTNL has been
scrupulously following COVID prevention and management guidelines for all its
stakeholders like social distancing, wearing of masks, and frequent hand sanitization.

Proper cleaning and frequent sanitization of workplace particularly of frequent touched
surfaces at regular intervals has been ensured.

Downloading and updating of Aarogya Setu app has been made mandatory.

Quarantine Leave has been provided for employees whose family members have been
infected with COVID.

For employees and their family members requiring hospitalization due to COVID,
Group Health insurance coverage upto Rs.6 Lakhs is being provided under Group
Health Insurance Scheme.
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13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Filed Pending Remark  Filed Pending Remark
during resolution at the during resolution at the
the year end of the year the year end of the year

Working conditions |- - - - - -
Health & Safety - - - - - -

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed
(by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

NA
NA

Health & Safety practice
Working conditions

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related
incidents (if any) and on significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health
& safety practices and working conditions.

NOT APPLICABLE

PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its
stakeholders

Essential Indicators
1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

Yes. The Company has mapped its internal and external stakeholders. Internal stakeholders
include employees of the Company; and external stakeholders include Department of
Telecommunications (DoT), equity shareholders, bondholders, creditors, vendors, bankers
and customers from both Public and Private sectors, Governmental Bodies and Regulatory
Authorities including State Government(s), Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Securities and Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges etc.

2. Liststakeholder groupsidentified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement
with each stakeholder group.

Stakeholder Group |W h e t h e r | Channels of | Frequency  of | Purpose and Scope
identified as|Communication|Engagement|of engagement
vulnerable & |(Email, SMS, |(Annually/|including key
Marginalized | Newspaper, Pamphlets, | Half yearly/ | topics and concerns
Group (Yes/|advertisement,|{Quarterly/|raised during such
No) Community  Meetings, | others — please | engagement

Notice board, Website), | specify)
Other

Deptt. of | NO Meetings, Letter, Email, | As and when |For Compliance

Telecommunication Telephonic Call required with directions

(DoT), Government issued by the Govt.

of India of India
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Customers

NO

Email, SMS, Newspaper,
advertisement Website

As and when
required

For Customer
Satisfaction and for
redressal of their
grievances

Vendors

NO

As needed: calls and
meetings, emails,
presentations, reviews.

At
intervals

regular

For operational
requirements

Shareholders

NO

Email/SMS/Website/
Letters/Telephone/
Newspaper etc.

On
basis,

quarterly
through
AGM, Postal
Ballot and
as and when
required

Communication of
financial results,
adoption of
financial statement
and transaction of
ordinary and special
business from time
to time.
Addressing
requests/grievances
of shareholders
from time to time

Bondholders

NO

Email/SMS/Website/
Letters/Telephone/
Newspaper etc.

Allotment,
Interest  Servicing,
Redemption
Payment, Bond
Certificate/Demat
Credit.
Addressing
requests/grievances
of bondholders from
time to time.

PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

Essential Indicators

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and
policy (ies) of the entity, in the following format:

L | | |
Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
ot | et 10| T | et [ @10
Permanent Employee

Male
Female Nil

Total

Other than Permanent Employee

Male
Female NOT APPLICABLE

Total
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2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers
As per approved MTNL payscales

3. Details of remuneration/ salary/ wages, in the following format:

Male Female
Median remuneration/ Median remuneration/
Number | salary/ wages of respective Number salary/ wages of
category respective category

Board of
Directors (BoD) 10 NIL 1 NIL
Key Managerial 5 0 NIL
Personnel*
Employees
other than BoD
and KMP*
Workers NOT APPLICABLE

*Total Salary paid to Employees during FY 2022-23 = Rs 545.23 Cr.

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human
rights impacts or issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

Yes

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights
issues.

MTNL has its own Grievance Redressal Procedure for employees. Management of the
Company believes in the philosophy of an Open Door Policy in the matter of redressal of
employee grievances. An aggrieved employee can approach his/her Departmental Head
or the concerned officer of the Personnel Department (including the Head of the Personnel
Department) and discuss his/her grievance. Best efforts are made to enable prompt actions
on the issues raised by the employee. The objective of the Grievance Redressal Procedure is to
provide an easily accessible machinery for settlement of grievances, and to adopt measures
as would ensure expeditious settlement of grievances, leading to increased satisfaction on
the job and resulting in improved productivity and efficiency of the organization.

6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2022-23
Filed during the year Pending resolution Remarks
at the end of year
Sexual Harassment 1 0 NIL
Discrimination at workplace Nil Nil
Child Labour Nil Nil Nil
Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour Nil Nil Nil
Wages 17 14| Pending before CLC
Other human rights related issues Nil Nil Nil
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7. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and
harassment cases.

To prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment
cases, MTNL has appointed concerned Liaison Officers and constituted Committees

8. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts?
(Yes/No)

No. MTNL has adopted employee- oriented policies, in line with the general laws and
sound ethical practices.

9. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed
( by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Child labour
Forced/involuntary labour

Sexual harassment -

Discrimination at workplace -

Wages -

10. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks /
concerns arising from the assessments at Question 9 above.

Not Applicable

PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the
environment

Essential Indicators

1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the
following format:

MTNL does not have production / manufacturing facility. It runs Telephone Exchanges in
Delhi and Mumbai.

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Delhi Mumbai Delhi Mumbai

Total electricity consumption (A) - 74355794 - 61598845

Total fuel consumption (B) - 21701 - 27311

Energy consumption through other sources (C) - 0 - 0

Total energy consumption (A+B+C) - 74377495 - 61626156

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover - -

(Total energy consumption/ turnover in rupees)

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under
the Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N)
If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case
targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

Not Applicable
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3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

MTNLis aTelecom Service provider company and does nothave production/ manufacturing
facility, therefore its water intensity is negligible

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Water withdrawal by source (in kiloliters)

1. Surface water - -

2. Groundwater - -

3. Third party water - -

4. Seawater / desalinated water - -
5. Others - -

Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + V) - -

Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Water consumed / turnover) - -

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an
external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

NO

4. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide
details of its coverage and implementation.

Not Applicable

5. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the
following format:

MTNLis a Telecom Service provider company and does nothave production/ manufacturing
facility. However, it complies with all applicable Environmental & Pollution laws and
regulations.

Parameter Please specify unit FY 2022-23 FY 2021 22
NOx - - -
SOx - - -
Particulate matter (PM) - - -
Persistent organic pollutants (POP) - - -

Volatile organic compounds (VOC) - - -

Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) - - -

Others — please specify - - -

6. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its
intensity, in the following format:

Not Applicable

7. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If yes,
then provide details.

Not Applicable
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8. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format*:

Parameter | FY 2022-23 | FY 2021-22

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

Hazardous waste generated - -
Non-hazardous waste generated - -
Total - -
Waste diverted from disposal - -
Category of waste (Hazardous) - -
(i) Recycled - -
(ii) Re-used - -
(iii) Other recovery operations - -
Total - -
Category of waste ( Non Hazardous) - -
(i) Recycled - -
(ii) Re-used - -
(iii) Other recovery operations - -

*Considering the nature of business, the Company does not generate any material waste other
than negligible quantity of e-waste.

9. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments.
Describe the strategy adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic
chemicals in your products and processes and the practices adopted to manage such
wastes.

Disposal of old, unserviceable & obsolete IT equipment’s, identified as e-waste, in MTNL,
Scrapping for Computer items done in 2019 through MSTC. The life of Computer has been
fixed for seven years. Given the nature of business and operations, the Company does not
have material plastic waste and other waste. Further, the Company does not have any
hazardous waste.

10. If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national
parks, wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests,
coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental approvals / clearances are required,
please specify details in the following format:

Not Applicable

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based
on applicable laws, in the current financial year:

Not Applicable

12. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines
in India; such as the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention
and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If
not, provide details of all such non-compliances.

MTNL is not a manufacturing company. Hence, the given question has limited relevance.
However, the Company complies with applicable Environmental & Pollution Laws and
Regulations in respect of its premises and operations
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PRINCIPLE 7 Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should
do so in a manner that is responsible and transparent:

Essential Indicators
1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.
NIL.

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total
members of such body) the entity is a member of/ affiliated to.

S. Name of the trade and industry chambers/ Reach of trade and industry chambers/
No. associations associations (State/National)
1. | Standing Conference of Public Enterprises (SCOPE) National
2. | Telecom Equipment And Services Export Promotion .
Council (TEPC) National

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti-
competitive conduct by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

No adverse order was received by the Company from regulatory authorities during the
financial year 2022- 23, hence no corrective action was required to be taken.

PRINCIPLE8 BUSINESSES SHOULD PROMOTEINCLUSIVE GROWTHAND EQUITABLE
DEVELOPMENT:

Essential Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on
applicable laws, in the current financial year.

Not Applicable

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement
(R&R) is being undertaken by your entity, in the following format:

Not Applicable
3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

MTNL has framed its Citizen/Client Charter which is available in the given link https://mtnl.
in/citizencharter.pdf . Also Common Charter of Telecom Services 2005 is also available in
the given link https://mtnl.in/telecom05.html. Telecom Consumer Charter for MTNL Delhi
Unit is given in the following link https://mtnldelhi.in/ccdelhi.pdf. Consumer Complaints
Redressal Regulation in MTNL Mumbai Unit is given in the following link https:/
mtnlmumbai.in/index.php/telecom-consumer-complaint-and-redressal-regulation.

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small producers 50.29 Cr 82.39 Cr
Sourced directly from within the district and neighbouring districts

PRINCIPLE 9: BUSINESSES SHOULD ENGAGE WITH AND PROVIDE VALUE TO THEIR
CONSUMERS IN A RESPONSIBLE MANNER

Essential Indicators
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Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and
feedback.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism in MTNL Delhi Unit: - The following are the different

mechanism for receiving and responding to consumer complaints and feedback :

a) Web portal “https://mtnldelhi.in”.

b) Call Center numbers:
T Toll free Consumer Alternate Specific General Alternate Specific o
ype of . . . Unified
Service care Number(s at Number accessible | Information | Number accessible Access No
Complaint Centre(s) | from other networks Number from other networks

Landline 198 xxxx2198 1500 22221500

Broadband 198, 1504 xxxx2198, 22221504 1504 ,1509 22221504 1130

FITH 1507 22221507 1507 22221507

GSM 1503 1800111503 1503 1800111503

“xxxx” stands for exchange code i.e. first four digits of Landline Telephone number.

c) Android phone users may use "My MTNL Delhi" App for booking, tracking complaints
and providing feedback.

d)

Consumer may contact to senior officials directly through telephoning. The contact details
of the MTNL senior officials are available on the website “https://mtnldelhi.in”.

e) Consumers may visit the nearby Sanchar haat. List of Sanchar haat is available on the
website ‘mtnldelhi.in’.

f) IVRS and Telephoning methods are also adopted in addition to the above methods for
consumer’s feedback

In case the complaint is not redressed within specified time-limit or if customer is not
satisfied, then to accelerate the redressal of his complaint, he can lodge appeal to appellate
authority. The details of Appellate Authorities of MTNL are available on website of MTNL
Delhi (www.mtnldelhi.in). In addition, the customer has an option to lodge his grievance,
in case of non-resolution of his grievances, on other platforms like: TRAI website: http://
www.trai.gov.in Public grievances to the central Government (Centralized CPGRAMS)
website: http://pgportal.gov.in. Customer can also booked complaint through e-mail id,

Grievance Redressal Mechanism in MTNL Mumbai Unit :

a) Customers can book complaints online at website ht